

CATALOG January 1st - December 31st

Advanced Training Associates 1810 Gillespie Way, Suite 104 El Cajon, CA 92020 619.596.2766

WWW.ADVANCEDTRAINING.EDU

Revised January 1, 2018

TABLE OF CONTENTS

GENERAL

Approval Disclosure Statement	3	2
Hours of Operation	4	
Legal Control	4	,
Academic Calendar	4	
Institutional Mission Statement	4	
Policy and Program Modification	4	
Facilities	4	
Library	5	
Administrative Personnel and Faculty	6	

ADMISSIONS

General Admission Requirements	8
Application Procedure	8
Restarts	8
Orientation and Requirements for Admission	9
ATA Acceptance of Credit	9
Transfer to and from Other Schools	9
Transfer Between Programs	9
Transcripts	10
Transcript Fee	10
Foreign Students	10

STUDENT POLICIES & SERVICES

Student Orientation	11
Hours	11
Maintenance of School Facility	11
Housing	11
Medical, Dental, Psychological Care	11
Child Care	11
Current Student Information	12
Visitors	12
Telephone	12
Photo Release	12
Academic Advisement	12
Voter Registration Form	12
Resource Center	12
Lost and Found	12
Dress Code	12
Rules and Regulations for Conduct	13
Substance Abuse Prevention Policy	13
Equal Opportunity	14
Americans with Disabilities Act	14
Student Responsibilities and Rights	14
Placement Services	15

STUDENT POLICIES & SERVICES (continued)

Student Grievance Procedures	15
Consumer Protection	16
Veteran	16
Books and Supplies	16
Student Identification Cards	16
Attendance	16
Leave of Absence	17
Grading System	18
Requirements and Grading Policies for Externship	18
Satisfactory Academic Progress Requirement	18
Unsatisfactory Academic & Progress Requirement	19
Module Retake Policy	19
Summary of Terminations/Reinstatement Policies	19
Withdrawal Policy	20
Appeals Process	20
Student Records & FERPA	20
Graduation Requirements	21
Diplomas and Degrees	22

FINANCIAL POLICIES

Tuition	23
Student Tuition Recovery Fund	24
Financial Aid Assistance	25
Verification Policy	26
Student Budget	26
Tuition and Fees	26
Cancellation of Agreement	26
Refund Policy	27
Withdrawal and Refunds	27
Return of Title IV Funds Policy	29
Unsatisfactory Financial Progress Requirement	30
Financial Aid Student Rights	30
Reinstatement of Financial Aid Eligibility	30
Completion Rates by Program	31

ACADEMICS

Faculty & Curriculum	32
Allied Health Programs	36-38
Technology Programs	39-48
Criminal Justice Programs	49-51
Degree Programs	52-61
Course Descriptions	72-109

Approval Disclosure Statement

Advanced Training Associates (ATA) is a private institution approved to operate by the California Bureau for Private Postsecondary Education. Approval to operate means the institution is compliant with the minimum standards contained in the California Private Postsecondary Education Act of 2009 (as amended) and Division 7.5 of Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations.

Advanced Training Associates has achieved national accreditation from the Council on Occupational Education (COE). This accrediting agency is recognized by the United States Department of Education (USDE). COE has also approved the following programs:

DEGREE PROGRAMS	Clock Hours	Weeks	Semester Credit Hour
Health Information Technician, AAS	1240	60	64
Medical Assistant, AAS	1240	60	64
Information Systems & Communication Technology, ATT	1220	61	65
Software Development & Programming, AAT	1220	61	64
Associate of Science in Criminal Justice	1220	61	71
APPROVED PROGRAMS			
Health Information Technician	760	34	36
Medical Assistant	760	34	33
Information Systems Technology	720	36	38
Software Development & Programming	720	36	37
Criminal Justice & Public Safety	720	36	40
APPROVED PROGRAMS LESS THAN 350 HOURS			
Electrocardiogram Technician	60	3	3
FCC Commercial Radio Operations	40	2	2
Fiber Optics Installation Technology	40	2	2
Fiber Optics for Professionals	125	6	7
Radar Technology	20	1	1
Telecom Installation & Service Technology	225	11	13

Students who successfully complete a course of study are awarded an appropriate diploma. Prospective enrollees are encouraged to visit the physical facilities of the school and discuss personal, educational, and occupational plans with the school's personnel before enrolling, or signing enrollment agreements.

Students who successfully complete the Information Systems and Communication Technology Associate of Applied Technology program, the Software Development & Programming Associate of Applied Technology Program, the Health Information Technician Associate of Applied Science, the Medical Assistant Associate of Applied Science Degree program, or the Associate of Science in Criminal Justice program will be awarded an associate degree.

Advanced Training Associates is authorized for Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) voucher training. ATA is approved for veteran's benefits under Title 38 United States Code (U.S.C.) The school is certified and authorized by the Veterans Administration to provide training services to veterans entitled to educational benefits. The School has available private payment plans, and it trains for various insurance companies for the vocational rehabilitation of their clients.

All information in the content of this School catalog is current and correct and is certified as true by Henry Marentes, President and CEO.

<u>Henry Marentes</u>

Hours of Operation

The School's business hours are Monday through Friday 8:00 a.m. until 10:00 p.m. For additional information on the School, contact the Admissions Department.

Legal Control

Advanced Training Associates is a private, postsecondary school. It is owned by Educational Ventures, LLC, a Delaware Corporation. The School is in compliance with all local, state, and federal laws and regulations.

Academic Calendar

Observed Holidays:



Registration is continuous. Classes start monthly; please see addendum for scheduled start and end dates.

Institutional Mission Statement

Our mission at Advanced Training Associates is to provide diploma and associate degree training for entry-level positions in specialized fields. Our goal is to assist individuals in learning new skills and/or enhancing previously obtained skills, through higher education. We strive to fulfill both the needs of the individual seeking employment and our community. We are committed to providing a quality education that instills core values which will develop work ethics, professionalism, honor, and integrity; giving our graduates a competitive edge through any economic condition.

Policy and Program Modification

In keeping with the school philosophy of an immediate response to the needs of students and future employers, the school reserves the right to modify the course content, structure, and schedule without additional charges to the student and within the regulatory guidelines. The school reserves the right to amend the catalog as needed.

Facilities

Instruction is in residence for all programs. All classes are held at 1810 Gillespie Way, Suite 104, El Cajon, CA 92020. The maximum class size depends on the classes and the module. In general, lab classes and lecture classes are a maximum of 20:1. Advanced Training Associates Campus is approximately 7,665 square feet that includes five instructional classrooms, three lab classrooms, eight administrative offices, a library, conference room, restrooms and two break rooms, with one for students and one for employees.

Classroom configurations are as follows:

Software Development Classroom: The classroom is approximately 377 square feet. Six desks are arranged in the classroom with each desk accommodating two students. The classroom is equipped with

computers for student use. All computers have internet access, applicable software, and mounted monitors. The instructor can broadcast videos over the local network that students can view on the individual computers.

Information Systems Technology Classroom: The classroom is approximately 377 square feet. Five desks are arranged in the classroom with each desk accommodating two students. The classroom is equipped with 10 computers for student use. All computers have internet access and applicable software. The instructor can broadcast videos over the local network that students can view on the individual computers.

Fiber Lab: The Fiber Classroom is used for fiber optics lectures and all hands-on labs. The fiber lab classroom is approximately 256 square feet. Two 6'x 2.5' tables capable of accommodating 8 students each are arranged depending on which lab is being performed.

Two Medical Classrooms: The medical classrooms are used for all medical assistant lectures. The classrooms are approximately 352 square feet. Six large tables accommodating three students each this gives a total capacity of 18 students. Each classroom can hold an additional table to accommodate two more students for a total of 20 students if needed.

Medical Lab Classroom: The medical lab is used for all hands-on labs for the medical assistant program. The classroom is approximately 408 square feet. The lab can be easily rearranged for demonstration of multiple procedures.

Criminal Justice Classroom: The classroom is approximately 377 square feet. Four desks are arranged in the classroom with each desk accommodating three students. The classroom can hold an addition large table to accomadate three more students if needed.

Cr*iminal Justice Lab:* The criminal justice lab is approximately 377 square feet. The lab can be easily rearranged for demonstration of multiple procedures.

Library

The Library is approximately 134 square feet. Library resources are available for use by students and instructors and includes includes video tapes, CDs and DVDs, as well as current magazine publications and medical books. Resources are accessible in the library on campus during hours of operation, Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 9:30 p.m. All materials are to remain on campus during use and are not allowed to be removed from the campus.

Administrative Personnel

Henry Marentes

Chief Executive Officer/President

B.A. Information Systems, National University20 years' of experience in information technology, strategic planning, and product management

Judith Hernandez

Chief Operating Officer

Masters of Business Administration, National University B.S. in Microbiology, San Diego State University 20 Years' Customer Support/Lifesciences

Valerie Phillips

Vice President of Operations

25 years' experience in Financial Aid, school administration & management California Lifetime Certificate of Authorization for School Director

Nick Fleetwood

Director of Compliance

M.Ed. in Educational Leadership, Concordia University – Portland B.S. in Biology, San Diego State University U.S. Navy Hospital Corpsman, 10 years' experience

Steven Howard Director of Admissions B.A. in Economics, San Diego State University

Dionne Simpson

Financial Aid Officer/Registrar B.A. in Business, San Diego State University

Heather Straight Career and Community Services Coordinator

M.S. in Business Administration, Ottawa University B.A. in Psychology, Utah State University

Ashley Dragula

Education Coordinator/High School Liaison

Faculty

Full Time Instructors

James Kyle

Director of Education/MA Instructor/GE Instructor

M.S. in Health Care Administration/Human Resource, Stevens-Henagar College B.A. in Psychology, National University B.S. in Healthcare Admin, CCSD Navy Hospital Corpsman, Retired

Jay Long

Information Technology Instructor – Programs/ Network Administrator

A.A.T. in Information System & Communications Technology, Advanced Training CHP IT Specialist/Officer, Retired

Joaquin Coffey

Telecommunications/ Fiber Instructor U.S. Navy Electronics Technician, Retired FCC GROL/Radar Endorsement, Certified Associate

Part Time Instructors

Jayson Salas

Allied Health Program Instructor Navy Hospital Corpsman, 7 years' of experience

Michael Parlacoski

Substitute Allied Health Program Instructor

A.S. Respiratory Therapy, California College Navy Hospital Corpsman, 7 years' of experience

Alan Furphy

Information Technology Instructor -

A.A. in Computer Science, Diablo Valley College 20 years' experience in IT

John Cresci

Substitute Information Technology Instructor/Software Development &Programming/Math/Business Applications-B.S. Business Administration Information Systems San Diego State University 24 years' experience in IT and software development.

Stu Shannon

Software Development and Programming/AAT Instructor-Approved Program A.S. in Computer Science Coleman University

Stephen Smith

Criminal Justice Instructor-Programs B.S. in Criminal Justice and Behavioral Science, National University U.S. Coast Guard Military Law Enforcement, 8 years' experience US Navy Corpsman, 6 years' experience

Adjunct Instructors

Sherri Savage Degree General Education, Intro to Psych M.S. in Education, Texas A&M

John Cresci

Degree General Education Math and Business Applications B.S. in Business Administration San Diego State University

Lawrence Eve

Degree General Education- Earth Science M.S in Kinesiology Louisiana State University B.A. in Political Science Indiana University Southeast

Christian Chargualaf

Degree General Educaiton- US History M.A. in Humanities, California State University

B.A. in History, University of Maryland

ADMISSIONS

General Admission Requirements

Prospective students who have a high school diploma or a recognized equivalency certificate (GED) are required to provide a copy of high school diploma, official transcript or GED certification or fill out a transcript request.⁺

Degree Program Admission Requirements

A high school diploma or GED is required for admission to the degree program.

Application Procedure

Qualified applicants who desire to enroll in one of the programs offered must apply in person. The Admissions Department is open from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., Monday through Friday. One of our Admissions Representatives will guide the applicant through the following steps:

- Choosing from the courses available
- Touring our facilities and equipment
- Arranging for applicable test(s), if any

The admissions process is comprised of the following steps:

- Complete the pre-evaluation questionnaire or Tuition Assistance Form for the Department of Defense
- Speak with an Admissions Representative
- Tour the facilities
- Take Admissions test, if required. ATA uses the Wonderlic (SLE)⁴
- Meet with a Financial Aid Representative
- Complete the application and enrollment paperwork
- Attend an orientation session on or before the start date of class

^oWonderlic Scholastic Level Exam (SLE) Minimum Scores

Academic Program	SLE Minimum Score
Information Systems Technology	14
 IS&CT, Associate of Applied Technology 	14
Criminal Justice & Public Safety	14
 All Associate of Science in Criminal Justice Programs* 	14
Software Development & Programming	16
 SD&P, Associate of Applied Technology 	16
Health Information Technician	13
Medical Assistant	13
All Associate of Applied Science Programs	14
All Approved Programs under 350 hours**	14

*Students enrolling in Criminal Justice Programs will need to submit a written essay.

***Military students taking seminar programs do not need to fulfill all regular admissions requirements.

Restarts

Students wishing to restart after withdrawing from the school may do so without penalty and will be assessed tuition as a proportion of the total program cost for only the modules the student needs to complete. Any prior balances must be cleared before the student will be permitted to re-enter.

Orientation and Requirements for Admission

Incoming students will be provided with a comprehensive orientation on school policies, drug and alcohol prevention, and program information prior to entrance into regularly scheduled classes. At the orientation, students will be provided with an opportunity to discuss the information described in the catalog, program handbook, school policies, program requirements, dress code, attendance requirements, library resources, etc. The orientation allows enrollees to become acquainted with fellow classmates, faculty, and staff of Advanced Training Associates.

Information Changes or Updates

Any new information sensitive to enrollment and completion of programs will be discussed at orientation on or before the start of class.

ATA Acceptance of Credit

Military Students

Advanced Training Associates will give credit to military personnel, both active duty and veterans, based upon the level of training, schooling and rate/MOS (Military Occupation Specialty) as it relates to specific skill competencies (experiential learning). This policy is in accordance with the Montgomery GI Bill and the Post 9/11 GI Bill for military personnel. There is no charge for this service.

Civilian Transfer Students

Additionally, Advanced Training Associates will give credit to any student that previously attended any institution that is regionally or nationally accredited. Credit will be given based on the level of schooling and credits the student earned at the previous institution and as it relates to the program the student wishes to enroll in at Advanced Training Associates. The school will evaluate the credits earned and convert those into clock hours, prorate the tuition, and charge the student the difference.

Example:

If the student previously earned 7.32 credits or 125 clock hours at a regionally or nationally accredited institution and enrolls in a program at Advanced Training Associates that is 720 clock hours. The school will base the tuition charge on the 595 remaining clock hours.

\$11,990.00 tuition divided by 720 clock hours = \$16.65 x 595 clock hours = \$9906.75 total tuition.

Advanced Training Associates does not accept hours or credit earned through challenge examinations or achievement tests or experiential credit for civilian students.

Transfer To and From Other Schools

Units earned in our programs in most cases will probably not be transferable to any other college or university. For example, if you started in our school as a freshman, you will still be a freshman if you enter another college or university at some time in the future, even though you have earned units here at our school. In addition, if you earn a degree or diploma in any of our programs, in most cases it will probably not serve as a basis for obtaining a higher-level degree at another college or university.

Transfer Between Programs

If a student desires a transfer from one program to another, no credit is given if the programs are different in nature. Programs that are similar in nature will be evaluated by the School Director for possible credit.

Articulation Agreements

This Institution has not entered any transfer or articulation agreements with any other college or university.

Notice Concerning Transferability of Credits and Credentials Earned at our Institution

The transferability of credits you earn at Advanced Training Associates is at the complete discretion of an institution to which you may seek to transfer. Acceptance of the degree or diploma you earn in any one of the Advanced Training Associates programs is also at the complete discretion of the institution to which you may seek to transfer. If the credits, degree or diploma you earn at Advanced Training Associates are not accepted at the institution to which you seek to transfer, you may be required to repeat some or all of your coursework at that institution. For this reason, you should make certain that your attendance at Advanced Training Associates will meet your educational goals. This may include contacting an institution to which you may seek to transfer after attending Advanced Training Associates to determine if your credits, degree, or diploma will transfer.

Credit for courses at our School that lead to the Degree Programs – Military Students

The short-term courses at our school are part of the Information Systems and Communications Technology Program. Successful completion of these courses will lead to credit toward the degree. Additionally, Advanced Training Associates will give credit for all individual diploma programs and General Education courses that are applicable, earned at other

institutions to all military and veterans of the United States Armed Forces.

In some circumstances, credit may be given for work experience.

Advanced Training Associates does not accept hours or credit earned through challenge examinations or achievement tests.

Transcripts

Advanced Training Associates will provide a transcript of the student's academic record upon written request by the student. An official copy

will be mailed to the appropriate person and/or school. An unofficial copy can be secured and given directly to a student. Transcripts will be denied if the student has an outstanding balance against her/his account.

Transcript Fee

Students who request a second official copy of their transcript or Ability to Benefit (ATB) test score through the school are assessed a non-refundable \$5 fee.

Foreign Students

Advanced Training Associates does not offer visa services to prospective students from other countries or English language services. Advanced Training Associates does not offer English as a Second Language instruction. All instruction occurs in English. English language proficiency is documented by:

- 1. The admissions interview
- 2. Receipt of prior education documentation
- 3. Take Admissions test, if required. ATA uses the Wonderlic (SLE)

STUDENT POLICIES AND SERVICES

Student Orientation

During orientation, a school administrator will familiarize the student with the school facilities, services, grading policies, graduation requirements, library resources, etc. as described in this catalog and student handbook.

Hours

Instruction Hours:

8:00 AM to noon, Monday through Friday 10:00 AM to 2:00 PM, Monday through Friday for Allied Health Programs 5:30 PM to 9:30 PM, Monday through Friday

Office Hours:

8:30 AM to 5:30 PM, Monday through Friday 5:30 PM to 7:00 PM, Monday through Thursday by appointment

Classes are offered continually on a cyclical basis, usually starting on selected Mondays. Legal holidays are observed. The school closes for winter break one week during the Christmas holiday season. The school provides special consideration for holidays of all religious beliefs. Appropriate arrangements must be made with the School Director. A complete listing of module starts, holidays, etc., is provided as an addendum.

Maintenance of School Facility

Care and adherence to infection control protocol (health professions) and equipment and environmental protection are necessary responsibilities of the workplaces. To prepare for these requirements, the following procedures must be followed:

- Smoking is only permitted in outdoor designated smoking areas
- Students must maintain a clean, organized, workstation always. When leaving the area, all electrical, including computers must be turned off
- Food and drinks are prohibited in the classrooms
- Students misusing the equipment and instrumental devices may be subject to dismissal and may be billed for damaged equipment
- Accidents and/or breakdowns must be reported immediately to the student's instructor

Housing

Advanced Training Associates does not assume responsibility for student housing, does not have dormitory facilities under its control, nor offers student housing assistance. According to rentals.com for El Cajon, CA, rental properties start at approximately \$1,000 per month.

Medical, Dental, Psychological Care

Successful progression through a program of study requires sufficient sleep, exercise, and a proper diet. If needed, medical and/or dental appointments should be made after school hours. If a student needs personal psychological counseling, the School Director will provide a listing of services in the community.

Child Care

Advanced Training Associates is not equipped or properly staffed to provide childcare services for enrollees.

Current Student Information

It is important that the school be notified of any change in residence or telephone numbers. Current and accurate personal information is necessary if an emergency should occur.

Visitors

Parents, spouses, prospective employers, etc. are cordially invited to visit the school at any time, but with appropriate notice to the school. Special arrangements will be made for groups. Anyone who is disruptive to the smooth operation of the school may be asked to leave the premises immediately. Students are not allowed to bring children into the classrooms/laboratories without approval from the administration.

Telephone

Emergency calls will be transmitted to the student when received. Cell phone usage should be limited to break times and outside the classroom in the student lounge.

Photo Release

At Advanced Training Associates, students will provide absolute rights and permission to use photographic portraits, pictures, or videos of them in character form, for advertising or any other lawful purpose whatsoever.

Academic Advisement

All students are provided with personal assistance regarding program requirements and scheduling. In addition, individual assistance, tutoring, and advising are readily available to students with special academic difficulties. There is no charge for tutoring and all students are urged to take advantage of this valuable benefit. Students are encouraged to request an appointment with their instructor immediately if any scholastic problems arise. The administration welcomes any suggestions as to ways in which any aspect of the school can be improved. Suggestions should be directed to the School Director.

Voter Registration Form

Voter registration forms are available in the administrative office.

Resource Center/Library

The Advanced Training Associates Resource Center offers publications and services directly related to all course work offered by the school. Print acquisitions such as books, magazines, newsletters, and internet access are made available to both students and faculty. In addition, there are public libraries located within commuting distance.

Lost and Found

It is important not to carry valuables such as large sums of money, jewelry, credit cards, etc. to class. Due to the nature of the laboratory classes, valuables cannot always be secured within a classroom. If something is lost, contact the administrative assistant at the front desk.

Dress Code

Creating a professional image requires dressing professionally for the career of your choice. This concept begins in school. Throughout your educational experiences, prospective employers will be visiting and sometimes observing you.

Students: Casual business attire is required. Shorts, beachwear, jeans, see-through fabric, low necklines, hemlines more than 4 inches above the knee, baggy trousers, and flip-flops are not appropriate attire for school.

Rules and Regulations for Conduct

Please maintain the following behaviors, as they are acceptable professional conduct for career professionals:

- 1. Accept assigned duties and responsibilities
- 2. Demonstrate initiative and productivity
- 3. Demonstrate sensitivity, compassion, and a caring attitude towards your peers
- 4. Demonstrate a cooperative, supportive team attitude toward your peers, instructor, and directors
- 5. Treat people as you would like to be treated
- 6. Maintain professional grooming and personal hygiene always
- 7. Be aware of the following restrictions:
 - Sexual harassment or any type of harassment, horseplay, or threat of any kind—verbal, physical
 or visual—will not be tolerated, particularly against students in protected classes. These classes
 include, but are not limited to, race, color religion, sex, age, sexual orientation, national origin or
 ancestry, disability, medical condition, marital status, veteran status, or any other protected
 status defined by law
 - Any physical violence will be reported to the local sheriff. Weapons are not permitted on campus
 - Use of profanity, insubordination, dishonesty, and violation of safety rules are unacceptable behaviors and will not be tolerated
 - Use or sale of non-prescription drug/s, alcohol will not be tolerated on the School premises and/or surrounding structures
 - Advanced Training Associates maintains a smoke-free environment
 - Food or drink is NOT permitted in the classrooms, unless designated by the School Director

Violation of the rules of conduct outlined in this catalog may lead to dismissal from school and/or probation. All disciplinary matters will come before the administration, which will review the complaint, interview the person(s) involved, and decide of the action. Results may include: dismissal of the charge, dismissal of the student, probation, or suspension for a specified period. The finding will become part of the student's permanent file, possibly affecting a recommendation from Advanced Training Associates to future employers. Advanced Training Associates reserves the right to dismiss any student for whom it feels continuation would be a detriment to the student, fellow students, and/or the school.

Substance Abuse Prevention Policy

As a matter of policy, Advanced Training Associates has adopted and implemented a program that prohibits the manufacture and unlawful possession, use or distribution of illicit drugs and alcohol by students and employees on its property and at any school activity. Any violation of this policy will result in appropriate disciplinary actions, up to and including expulsion, even for a first offense. Where it is apparent that a violation of the law has occurred, the appropriate law enforcement authorities will be notified.

Drug use and alcohol abuse have harmed society through major health and safety problems and contributed to the deterioration of the nuclear family. The administration, staff, and faculty are dedicated to providing education, awareness, treatment referrals, along with the legally mandated reporting and criminal sanctions. You will receive a comprehensive handbook during orientation outlining the regulation for the Drug-Free Schools and Campuses Act that was published in August 1990. This handbook includes a written drug policy, information on health risks, legal penalties and sanctions, referral services, and treatment options.

Equal Opportunity

Advanced Training Associates is committed to the full utilization of all human resources and to a policy of equal opportunity. Our Company will not discriminate against applicants or students for enrollment on any legally-recognized basis including, but not limited to, veteran status, race, color, religion, gender, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin, physical or mental disability and/or age.

In accordance with stipulations of Affirmative Action, Education Ventures, LLC is required to state the following facts:

- We are in compliance with Executive Order 11246
- The Vice President of Operations is the affirmative action officer
- Educational Ventures, LLC is in compliance with California Department of Fair Employment and Housing Requirements (2 California Code of Regulation, Section 8103)

You may discuss equal opportunity related questions with the Vice President of Operations.

Americans with Disabilities Act

Our school is committed to providing equal opportunities to our students that are otherwise qualified individuals with disabilities, which includes providing reasonable accommodations whenever necessary. In general, it is your responsibility to notify the school of the need for an accommodation. Upon doing so, you may be asked by the School Director for your input or the type of accommodation you believe may be necessary or the functional limitations caused by your disability. Also, when appropriate, we may ask you to provide additional information from your physician or other medical or rehabilitation professionals.

Student Responsibilities and Rights

Responsibilities

- 1. In addition to the requirements described under sections on attendance, satisfactory progress, etc. in this catalog, students are expected to follow standards of conduct and ethical consideration generally found in the professional workplace. Refer to *Rules and Regulations for Conduct* in this catalog.
- 2. Read and understand all forms that you are asked to sign and keep copies of them.
- It is the student's responsibility to compare options and choose the school he/she wishes to attend. Tuition must be paid regardless of any future complaints or problems, unless discharged by a court of law.
- 4. Repay all loans on time and in full.

Rights

- 1. Know what financing is available. For all loans you receive, you have the right to know the total amount that must be repaid, the monthly payment amount, the late penalty charge, the payback procedures, the length of time for repaying the loan, and when repayment is to begin.
- 2. Know the criteria for satisfactory progress and when you are not meeting these criteria.
- 3. You may stop school at any time and receive a refund for the part of the course you did not take (if payment has been made). The refund policy is in this catalog and also described in your enrollment agreement.

If you have unresolved complaints after following the grievance procedures, you may contact the Bureau for Private Postsecondary Education or the Council on Occupation Education. Read the section on grievance procedures carefully.

Placement Services

The School provides placement assistance to all our graduates. Although we cannot make job promises or guarantees, the Career Services Department will assist graduates in finding employment. Students will be given assistance in career preparedness including how to prepare a professional resume, fill out employment applications, and use effective interviewing techniques. Our Career Services Department will assist in identifying jobs that fit each student's qualifications.

Student Grievance Procedures

Occasionally, a problem may arise between you and an instructor, or with some aspect of the School. Students are encouraged to verbally communicate their concerns to the appropriate person. It is very important that this problem be resolved. The following are the steps you should take to resolve this problem:

Step One: The student should request an appointment with the instructor or person involved.

Step Two: If Step One has not resolved the problem, the student must notify the School Director in writing within 2 business days after the incident occurs. The "Incident Report" can be obtained from the Director.

Step Three: If the student has followed the above steps, the School Director will call a grievance committee meeting within a week of receipt of the "Incident Report" form. The following steps are followed:

- a. All involved parties must complete an "Incident Report" form
- b. All documentation must be received prior to the meeting
- c. The membership of the grievance committee members can consist of, but is not limited to the School Director, Financial Aid Officer, the instructor, and/or appropriate program head
- d. All persons involved with the incident will also be in attendance
- e. The student and all other parties involved will present their views. Minutes will be taken
- f. After all such information is presented, the committee will meet in the absence of those involved to discuss the matter
- g. The decision of the committee will be reported to all interested parties

A student or any member of the public may file a complaint about this institution with the Bureau for Private Postsecondary Education by calling 888.370.7589 toll-free or by completing a complaint form, which can be obtained on the bureau's Internet Web site www.bppe.ca.gov.

Schools accredited by the Council on Occupational Education must have a procedure and operational plan for handling student complaints. If a student does not feel that the school has adequately addressed a complaint or concern, the student may consider contacting the accrediting Council. All complaints considered by the Council must be in written form, with permission from the complainant(s) for the Council to forward a copy of the complaint to the School for a response. The complainant(s) will be kept informed as to the status of the complaint as well as the final resolution by the Council. Please direct all inquiries to:

> The Council on Occupational Education 7840 Roswell Road, Building 300, Suite 325 Atlanta, GA 30350 www.council.org 770.396.3898

A copy of the Council's Complaint Form is available at the school and may be obtained by contacting the Vice President of Operations at the School.

Students may also receive comparable program information related to tuition and program length by contacting the Council on Occupational Education, at the address listed above.

Consumer Information

Any questions a student may have regarding this catalog that have not been satisfactorily answered by the institution may be directed to the Bureau for Private Postsecondary Education at 2535 Capitol Oaks Drive, Suite 400, Sacramento, CA 95833, www.bppe.ca.gov, toll-free telephone number (888) 370-7589 or by fax (916) 263-1897.

As a prospective student, you are encouraged to review this catalog prior to signing an enrollment agreement. You are also encouraged to review the School Performance Fact Sheet, which must be provided to you prior to signing an enrollment agreement.

Advanced Training Associates has never filed for bankruptcy petition, operated as a debtor in possession or had a petition of bankruptcy filed against it under Federal law.

Veterans

Advanced Training Associates is approved by the California State Approving Agency to enroll veterans and other eligible persons who qualify for VA Benefits. For information or for resolution on payment problems the veteran should call the Department of Veteran Affairs toll free nationwide number 888-442-4551.

Books and Supplies

The costs of books are included in the total program cost. Educational Supplies and lab fee charges are listed on your enrollment agreement. Other supplies such as notebooks, note paper, highlighters, pens, pencils, and erasers, etc. must be provided by the student.

Student Identification Cards

Students are issued an ID card at no cost. The ID card is designed to be worn with the provided school lanyard during class hours. Having or wearing an ID card is required. Students will be charged \$10.00 USD for replacement cards.

Attendance

Consistent attendance is essential to the overall effectiveness of the training a student receives at Advanced Training Associates. Attendance is as important as learning, as future employers emphasize punctuality and attendance as top job requirements. A student is required to attend all scheduled classes regularly and punctually.

Advanced Training Associates recognizes that there are times when a student is unable to attend class, arrives late or leaves early. The attendance policy allows for these circumstances, while ensuring that each student attends class a sufficient amount of time to master the subject material. A student will be required to make up absences if his/her attendance falls below 90%. Failure to make up missed days will affect financial aid eligibility and may result in dismissal from school. Unsatisfactory progress and automatic termination from the program will result from missing ten (10) consecutive school days and not returning on the eleventh (11th) day of absence or extending training time beyond 150% of the program total.

Attendance Probation

Attendance Probation: Criteria for Placement Process	A student will be required to make up absences if he or she is below 90% attendance. The student will be on attendance probation until his/her attendance is at or above 90%. The student must make up his/her absence and bring his/her attendance above 90% by the end of the next module. A student may be placed on probation for a maximum of two modules in an academic year before dismissal is recommended.
Consecutive Days Absent:	A student who has missed ten (10) consecutive school days and does not return on the eleventh (11th) day will be terminated from school on that day.
Effect of Not Meeting Attendance Requirement at End of Probationary Period:	If 90% attendance is not achieved at the conclusion of the probationary period, the student will be terminated.
Attendance Appeal Process:	Students may appeal termination if extenuating circumstances exist. Appeals must be made in writing to the School Director. The director will decide the date of re-entry, if applicable.

Re-entry Policy

Students who have been terminated for violating the attendance policy may re-enter as soon as their appeal is processed and approved by the School Director.

Leave of Absence

Students may be granted one leave of absence (LOA) per 12-month period for certain specific and acceptable reasons. All LOAs must be in writing please see administration. If a student fails to return on the scheduled return date, he/she shall be terminated from the training program. One subsequent leave of absence may be granted if the leave of absence does not exceed 30 days and the School determines that it is necessary due to unforeseen circumstances. Subsequent leaves of absence may be granted for jury duty, military reasons, or circumstances covered under the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993. The school must document the reason for each subsequent leave of absence.

Effects of Leave of Absence on Satisfactory Academic Progress

Students who are contemplating a leave of absence should be cautioned that one or more of the following factors may affect their eligibility to graduate within the maximum program completion time.

- Students returning from a leave of absence are not guaranteed that the module required to maintain the normal progression in their training program will be available at the time of their return from the leave of absence
- They may have to wait for the appropriate module to be offered, which may extend their leave of absence
- They may be required to repeat the entire module from which they elected to withdraw prior to receiving a final grade
- Financial aid may be affected

A student can request a Leave of Absence for up to 180 days in any 12-month period. Requesting a Leave of Absence does not result in additional charges. Written requests for leave of absence will be considered at the discretion of the school administration except in the circumstance of military students that are called to duty; in that circumstance the Leave of Absence will be approved.

Servicemembers and reservists are readmitted to their programs of study when the student is called to duty. For shorter periods of absences, a student will have the opportunity to make up classes and course work and or repeat the module they missed at no additional charge

Grading System

Evaluation of student achievement will be based on meeting the objectives for each class. At the beginning of each class, the instructor will provide the student with a syllabus identifying the objectives and grade determination criteria. Students must achieve a cumulative grade point average of at least 2.0 (73%). A student who fails a course is permitted to continue in her/his studies if satisfactory progress is maintained. Any course that is failed must be repeated and passed.

Grade Point

The following system of grade points is used to evaluate a student's level of achievement:

А	94% - 100% 4.00	С	73% – 76.99% 2.00
A-	90% – 93.99% 3.70	C-	70%-72.99% 1.70
B+	87% – 89.99% 3.30	D+	67%-69.99% 1.30
В	83% - 86.99% 3.00	D	63%-66.99% 1.00
B-	80% - 82.99% 2.70	D-	60%-62.99% 0.70
C+	77% – 79.99% 2.30	F	0% – 59.99% 0.00

Incomplete

An incomplete grade may be given for incomplete class assignments and/or examinations only with permission from the instructor. The incomplete grade will be converted to an F grade if the incomplete is not made up within one week after the following module begins. (If a student does not make up incomplete course work, then the incomplete grade will be converted to a Fail grade.)

Make-up work

Absences that exceed 10% of class time must be made up. Students will be required to make up all assignments, examinations or other work missed as the result of any absence. Upon returning to school, the student must immediately arrange to meet with the instructor regarding missed requirements. If the instructor approves, the student must make up assignments within five (5) days and examinations on the day the student returns from an absence. The instructor may assign additional outside assignments if deemed necessary. All arrangements are subject to approval by the School Director.

Requirements and Grading Policies for Externship

For programs requiring an externship, the School will provide an externship site upon completion of classroom portion of the program. Policies and grading of the externship are described in the Program Handbook. Days, hours, dress code, responsibilities, etc. are dependent on the requirements of the extern facility. During the externship, each student will be evaluated in the areas of professional performance, work habits, initiative, etc. Criteria for grading are described in the Program Handbook. If the student is unable to reach minimum competency at the extern facility, she/he will be required to return to school for remedial assistance and/or serve additional externship hours.

Satisfactory Academic Progress Requirement

Academic progress

All students must maintain satisfactory academic progress (SAP) in order to remain eligible to continue as students in the School. All students are considered to be making satisfactory progress when they begin school and during any probationary period. Satisfactory progress includes, but is not limited to meeting minimum standards for grades, work projects, externship, etc.

Requirements

Students must show satisfactory academic progress. In order to maintain satisfactory academic progress, students must:

- Achieve a cumulative grade percent average (GPA) of at least 73 percent (on a scale of 0-100 percent) or be on academic probation; students on academic probation must attend mandatory tutoring. There is no charge for this service
- Progress at a satisfactory rate toward completion of their programs; and
- Complete the training programs within 1 1/2 times the published program length

Students whose cumulative GPA falls below 73 percent are notified that they are being placed on academic probation, which will begin at the start of the next module. Students are considered to be making satisfactory progress while on probation status.

Unsatisfactory Academic and Progress Requirement

Probationary status

Academic Probation: Criteria for Placement Process	A student will be placed on academic probation when he or she cannot meet the above-described GPA for one module. For Financial Aid purposes SAP is measured at the end of each payment period and a student placed on academic probation will be considered to be making satisfactory progress. If the GPA is unsatisfactory for an additional module, the student will be placed on a second probation and allowed a maximum of two months to bring his/her cumulative grade point average to 73 or be terminated.
Academic Probation Removal: Time period Effects of meeting/not meeting Times placed	Removal of academic probation requires that a student maintain satisfactory academic progress for at least one module. A student may be placed on academic probation a maximum of two times in an academic year before dismissal occurs.
Academic Appeal Process:	Students who are placed on a probation and/or termination status for failure to maintain satisfactory academic progress may appeal. A written statement describing the extenuating circumstances must be submitted to the School Director. The director will determine the date of re-entry, if applicable.

Maximum Program Completion Time

Students are expected to complete their program within the defined maximum program completion time, which should not exceed 150% times the normal time frame. This campus defines the normal time frame as the length of time it would take a student to complete the total program semester credit hours or clock hours according to the Enrollment Agreement.

Unsatisfactory grades

Courses with grades of F or I are considered unsatisfactory, and the credits are not successfully completed. These courses must be repeated within 150% of the normal time frame.

Module Retake Policy

A student may repeat a module only once when an unsatisfactory grade has been attained. There is no charge for this service. The higher of the two grades will be counted for purposes of calculating the student's GPA.

Summary of Termination/Reinstatement Policies

Those who fail to maintain the required policies described under the sections related to satisfactory academic/attendance progress requirements, leave of absence, conduct, dress code, substance abuse and/or financial obligations included within this catalog may be subject to termination.

Examples include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Violation of the attendance policy
- Failure to maintain satisfactory academic progress
- Violation of personal conduct standards
- Inability to meet financial obligations to the School

Reinstatement Policy

Students who have been terminated for failing to maintain satisfactory academic progress may be reinstated through the appeal process. However, students are not eligible for financial aid during this appeals process. Upon reinstatement, the student will be placed on probation. At the end of the first module after reinstatement, the following standards must be achieved: a cumulative GPA of 2.0 (73%) and 90% cumulative attendance.

Withdrawal Policy

In order to withdraw, the student must complete an official withdrawal form and file it with the School Director. A student will be dropped after ten (10) consecutive absences if a withdrawal form is not filed.

Appeals Process

Re-admission to the school following withdrawal for any reason will be at the discretion of the School's Academic Committee (School Director and Faculty). A student may petition in writing for reinstatement within one year of dismissal. The petition must be filed at least two weeks before the beginning of a module. The Committee will review the student's previous academic admission records and his/her current situation in making a decision for reinstatement. The student will then be notified of the Committee's decision. Students accepted for re-admission will be entitled to the same rights and privileges and are subject to the same regulations as any student. Students will not be entitled to appeal if they are terminated for exceeding the maximum program completion length.

Student Records

Student records, which include grades, attendance, prior education and training, personal achievements, etc. are kept for a period of not less than five (5) years on the school premises. Academic transcripts are kept permanently.

Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974, as amended

Advanced Training Associates complies with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), which provides students certain rights related to their educational records. The following is a description of those rights:

- The right to inspect and review the student's educational records within 45 days of the day the School receives a written request for access: Students should submit to the School President written requests that identify the record (s) they wish to inspect. The School official will make arrangements for access and notify the student of the time and place where the records may be inspected. If the records are not maintained by the school official to whom the request was submitted, that official shall advise the student of the correct official to whom the request should be addressed.
- The right to request the amendment of the student's educational records that the student believes are inaccurate or misleading. Student may ask the school to amend a record that he/she believes is inaccurate or misleading. The student should write the school official responsible for the record, clearly identify the part of the record they want changed, and specify why it is inaccurate or misleading. If the School decides not to amend the record as requested by the student, the school will notify the student

of the decision and advise the student of his or her right to a hearing regarding the request for amendment. Additional information regarding the hearing procedures will be provided to the student when notified of the right to a hearing.

- The right to consent to disclosures of personally identifiable information contained in the student's education records, except to the extent that FERPA authorizes disclosure without consent: One exception, which permits disclosure without consent, is disclosure to School officials with legitimate educational interests. A School official is a person employed by the School in an administrative, supervisory, academic and research, or support staff position (including law enforcement unit personnel and health staff). A person or company with whom the School has contracted (such as an attorney, auditor, or collection agent); a person serving on the Board of Trustees; a student serving on an official in performing his or her tasks. A school official has a legitimate educational interest if the official needs to review an educational record in order to fulfill his or her professional responsibility. Upon request, the school discloses educational records without consent to officials of another school in which a student seeks or intends to enroll.
- Directory information is information that may be unconditionally released to third parties by the school
 without the consent of the student unless the student specifically requests that the information not be
 released. The school request students to present such requests in writing within 10 days of the date of
 enrollment. Directory information includes the student's name, address(s), telephone number(s), birth
 date and place, program undertaken, dates of attendance, and certificate or diploma awarded.
- The right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning alleged failures by the School to comply with the requirements of FERPA: The name and address of the Office that administers FERPA is Family Policy Compliance Office, Department of Education, 600 Independence Avenue, SW, Washington, DC 20202-4605.

Graduation Requirements

Success is dependent upon the student's individual efforts, abilities, and application to the requirements of the school.

To be eligible for graduation, student must:

- Complete all required classroom modules with a cumulative grade point average of at least 2.0
- Meet the grade and other program requirements for specific modules (if applicable)
- Meet the Satisfactory Progress requirement
- Meet all financial or other obligations to the school

Advanced Training Associates does not have a cumulative final test or examination required for the completion of any program.

Graduation ceremonies will be scheduled throughout the year. Graduates will be notified, in advance, by mail of the upcoming events.

Verification of Students Identity

During the enrollment process, all students are required to present, in person, a State or Federal issued photo identification card and Social Security number card to verify their identity. All students attend class on campus, therefore they would not incur a fee for any process related to identification verification or personal data collection.

Diploma and Degrees

When requirements are met, a diploma is awarded to graduates of approved programs.

Upon successful completion of the Information Systems & Communications Technology Associate of Applied Technology Degree Program, students will be awarded an Associate of Applied Technology Degree.

Upon successful completion of the Medical Assistant Associate of Applied Science Program, students will be awarded an Associate of Applied Science Degree.

Upon successful completion of the Health Information Technician Associate of Applied Science Program, students will be awarded an Associate of Applied Science Degree.

Upon successful completion of the Software Development & Programming Associate of Applied Technology Degree Program, students will be awarded an Associate of Applied Technology Degree.

Upon successful competition of the Associate of Science in Criminal Justice program, students will be award and Associates of Science Degree.

Transcripts

There will be no transcripts issued until all financial or other obligations are met.

FINANCIAL POLICIES

Advanced Training Associates Effective for all terms through 31 Dec 2018

Tuition and Fees

Because of the many changes that occur daily in business and education, it is impossible to guarantee longstanding particulars. The school, therefore, reserves the right to modify the tuition.

ALLIED HEALTH PROGRAMS

Program	Registration Fee Non-Refundable	Student Tuition Recovery Fund Non- Refundable	Media Services, Supplies and Lab Fees	Tuition Payment Period 1	Tuition Payment Period 2	*Total Cost
Health Information Technician	\$100.00	\$0	\$250.00	\$5995.00	\$5995.00	\$12,340.00
Medical Assistant	\$100.00	\$0	\$250.00	\$5995.00	\$5995.00	\$12,340.00
Electrocardiogram Technician	\$100.00	\$0	\$50.00	\$800.00	N/A	\$950.00

TECHNOLOGY PROGRAMS

Information Systems Technology	\$100.00	\$0	\$250.00	\$5995.00	\$5995.00	\$12,340.00
Software Development & Programming	\$100.00	\$0	\$250.00	\$5995.00	\$5995.00	\$12,340.00
FCC Commercial Radio Operations	\$100.00	\$0	\$50.00	\$750.00	N/A	\$900.00
Fiber Optics for Professionals	\$100.00	\$0	\$700.00	\$2500.00	N/A	\$3300.00
Fiber Optics Installation Technology	\$100.00	\$0	\$30.00	\$1200.00	N/A	\$1330.00
Radar Technology	\$100.00	\$0	\$50.00	\$250.00	N/A	\$400.00
Telecom Installation & Service Technology	\$100.00	\$0	\$470.00	\$3500.00	N/A	\$4070.00

CRIMINAL JUSTICE PROGRAMS

al Justice & Public Safety	\$100.00 \$0	\$250.00 \$5995.00	\$5995.00	\$12,340.00	
----------------------------	--------------	--------------------	-----------	-------------	--

* Estimated charges for the period of attendance and the entire program.

DEGREE PROGRAMS

Program	Registration Fee Non- Refundable	Student Tuition Recovery Fund Non- Refundable	Media Services, Supplies and Lab Fees	1 st Term Tuition Payment Period 1	1 st Term Tuition Payment Period 2	2 nd Term Tuition Payment Period 1	2 nd Term Tuition Payment Period 2	*Total Cost
Information Systems & Communications Technology Associate of Applied Technology	\$200.00**	\$0	\$250.00	\$5995.00	\$5995.00	\$2900.00	\$2900.00	\$18,240.00

Medical Assistant Associate of Applied Science	\$200.00**	\$0	\$250.00	\$5995.00	\$5995.00	\$2900.00	\$2900.00	\$18,240.00
Health Information Technician Associate of Applied Science	\$200.00**	\$0	\$250.00	\$5995.00	\$5995.00	\$2900.00	\$2900.00	\$18,240.00
Software Development & Programming Associate of Applied Technology	\$200.00**	\$0	\$250.00	\$5995.00	\$5995.00	\$2900.00	\$2900.00	\$18,240.00
Associate of Science in Criminal Justice	\$200.00**	\$0	\$250.00	\$5995.00	\$5995.00	\$2900.00	\$2900.00	\$18,240.00

* Estimated charges for the period of attendance and the entire program.

Additional Fees

The following list of additional certifications and memberships are available to Advanced Training Associates students; fees* are not included in the tuition. Arrangements for payment should be made prior to enrollment along with the fees listed on the enrollment agreement.

*Fees subject to change based on association's fees.

Electronics Technicians Association (ETAi) and The Fiber Optic Association (FOA) Exam Fees:				
Associate Certified Electronics Technician (CETa)	\$60.00 (ETAi)			
Certified Network Computer Technician (CNCT)	\$75.00 (FOA)			
Certified Premises Cabling Technician (CPCT)	\$30.00 (FOA)			
Certified Fiber to The Home Technician (CFOS/H)	\$30.00 (FOA)			
Certified Fiber Optic Technician (CFOT) \$30.00 (FOA)				
Federal Communications Commission (FCC) Commercial Radio Licens	se:			
- Individual Element	\$50.00 (ETAi)			
- Any two (2) Elements taken together	\$50.00 (ETAi)			
- Any three (3) Elements taken together	\$70.00 (ETAi)			

Student Tuition Recovery Fund*

All students who are residents of California and pay their tuition either by cash, guaranteed student loans, or personal loans must participate in the Student Tuition Recovery Fund (STRF). The Non-Refundable STRF charge for your program will be based on the charge of \$0 for \$1,000.00 in tuition charges rounded to the nearest \$1,000.00.

You must pay the state-imposed assessment for the Student Tuition Recovery Fund (STRF) if all the following applies to you:

- 1. You are a student, in an educational program, who is a California resident, or are enrolled in a residency program, and prepay all or part of your tuition either by cash, guaranteed student loans, or personal loans, and
- 2. Your total charges are not paid by any third-party payer such as an employer, government program or other payer unless you have a separate agreement to repay the third party.

You are not eligible for protection from the STRF and you are not required to pay the STRF assessment, if either of the following applies:

You are not eligible for protection from the STRF and you are not required to pay the STRF assessment, if either of the following applies:

- 1. You are not a California resident, or are not enrolled in a residency program, or
- 2. Your total charges are paid by a third party, such as an employer, government program or other payer, and you have no separate agreement to repay the third party.

The State of California created the Student Tuition Recovery Fund (STRF) to relieve or mitigate economic losses suffered by students in an educational program who are California residents, or are enrolled in a

residency program attending certain schools regulated by the Bureau for Private Postsecondary Education (BPPE).

You may be eligible for STRF if you are a California resident or are enrolled in a residency program, prepaid tuition, paid the STRF assessment, and suffered an economic loss as a result of any of the following:

- 1. The school closed before the course of instruction was completed.
- 2. The school's failure to pay refunds or charges on behalf of a student to a third party for license fees or any other purpose, or to provide equipment or materials for which a charge was collected within 180 days before the closure of the school.
- 3. The school's failure to pay or reimburse loan proceeds under a federally guaranteed student loan program as required by law or to pay or reimburse proceeds received by the school prior to closure in excess of tuition and other costs.
- 4. There was a material failure to comply with the Act or this Division within 30 days before the school closed or, if the material failure began earlier than 30 days prior to closure, the period determined by the Bureau.
- 5. An inability after diligent efforts to prosecute, prove, and collect on a judgment against the institution for a violation of the Act.

However, no claim can be paid to any student without a social security number or a taxpayer identification number.

•As of January 1, 2015, collection of STRF fees has been suspended as per the BPPE.

Financial Aid Assistance

Advanced Training Associates participates in financial aid programs to assist students in paying for their tuition and fees. Preparing for a lifelong career requires not only a commitment of time and effort, but also a financial investment in a quality educational program. Many people feel that they cannot afford the tuition, books and time required for formal training. The following financial aid programs are available to students at Advanced Training Associates, subject to individual qualifications. Federal Financial Aid is available for Medical Assistant, Health Information Technician, Medical Assistant AAS, Health Information Technician AAS, Information Systems Technology, Software Development & Programming, Information Systems & Communications Technology AAT, Criminal Justice and AS in Criminal Justice and Software Development & Programming AAT programs only.

PELL	Federal Pell Grant
PLUS	Federal Parent Loan for Undergraduate Students
FSEOG	Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant
FEDERAL STUDENT LOANS*	Direct Subsidized and Unsubsidized Loan Programs
WIOA	Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act
REHAB	Private Rehabilitation Benefits
ТА	Tuition Assistance for Military Personnel
GI Bill	Veterans Benefits

Students seeking financial aid must first complete the Free Application for Federal Student Aid application (FAFSA). The school's financial aid representative will use this application to determine the student's needs and assist with deciding what programs best serve the student. If a student withdraws from school, an adjustment in the amount owed may be made, subject to the school's refund policy. If a student has received financial aid in excess of what he/she owes the college, these funds must be returned to the federal financial aid program, if applicable.

*(1) federal student loans are required by law to provide a range of flexible repayment options, including, but not limited to, income-based repayment and income-contingent repayment plans, and loan forgiveness benefits, which other student loans are not required to provide; and (2) federal direct loans are available to students regardless of income.

Verification Policy

If a student application is selected for review in a process called "Verification" by the Department of Education, the student may be required to submit additional documentation to the Financial Aid Department. Once a student is notified to provide additional documentation, the required information must be provided to the School within 45 days of notification. Failure to do so may result in suspension from school. A student, who purposely gives false or misleading information to the Financial Aid Office, may be reported to the Office of Inspector General.

Student Budget

In addition to the direct costs of education, it is important to develop a budget to identify other financial obligations that a student may incur when attending school. These expenses may include transportation, childcare, personal expenses, etc. The school's financial aid representative will assist students with this budget.

Tuition and Fees

The Enrollment Agreement obligates the student and the School for the entire program of instruction. The student's financial obligations will be calculated in accordance with the School's refund policy in the contract and this school catalog. Registration and tuition fees for each program are listed on preceding page 23 & 24. An institutional catalog is available at no charge and will be provided to each enrollee prior to enrollment. Tuition is due in full at the beginning of each payment period. The school will work with each student to determine the best financial arrangement to meet his/her obligation for tuition. The school provides a voluntary prepayment plan to students and their families to help reduce the costs upon entry into training. Details are available through the financial aid representative.

The following payment plan is available to those who do not qualify for total financial assistance sufficient to cover the amount of tuition and fees:

• 10% down payment on the total program charges, followed by equal monthly installments during the student's enrollment period.

Cancellation of Agreement and Withdrawal from School

You have the right to cancel agreement for a program of instruction, without any penalty or obligations, through attendance at the first-class session or the seventh calendar day after enrollment, whichever is later. After the end of the cancellation period, you also have the right to stop school at any time and you have the right to receive a pro rata refund if you have completed 60 percent or less of the scheduled hours in the current payment period in your program through the last day of attendance.

- Cancellation may occur when the student provides a written notice of cancellation at the following address: Advanced Training Associates 1810 Gillespie Way, Suite 104, El Cajon, CA 92020. This can be done by mail or by hand delivery.
- The written notice of cancellation, if sent by mail, is effective when deposited in the mail properly addressed with proper postage.
- The written notice of cancellation need not take any particular form and, however expressed, it is effective if it shows that the student no longer wishes to be bound by the Enrollment Agreement.
- If the Enrollment Agreement is cancelled the school will refund the student any money he/she paid, less a registration or administration fee not to exceed \$100.00 and less any deduction for

equipment not returned in good condition, within 45 days after the notice of cancellation is received.

Withdrawal from the Program and Refund Policy

You may withdraw from the school at any time after the cancellation period (described above) and receive a pro rata refund if you have completed 60 percent or less of the scheduled hours in the current payment period in your program through the last day of attendance. The refund will be less a registration or administration fee, and less any deduction for equipment not returned in good condition, within 45 days of withdrawal. If the student has completed more than 60% of the period of attendance for which the student was charged, the tuition is considered earned and the student will receive no refund.

For the purpose of determining a refund under this section, a student shall be deemed to have withdrawn from a program of instruction when any of the following occurs:

- The student notifies the institution of the student's withdrawal or as of the date of the student's withdrawal, whichever is later
- The institution terminates the student's enrollment for failure to maintain satisfactory progress; failure to abide by the rules and regulations of the institution; absences in excess of maximum set forth by the institution; and/or failure to meet financial obligations to the school
- The student has failed to attend class for 10 days
- The student fails to return from a leave of absence

For the purpose of determining the amount of the refund, the date of the student's withdrawal shall be deemed the last date of recorded attendance. The amount owed equals the daily charge for the program (total institutional charge, minus non-refundable fees, divided by the number of days in the program), multiplied by the number of days scheduled to attend, prior to withdrawal. For the purpose of determining when the refund must be paid, the student shall be deemed to have withdrawn at the end of 10 days.

For programs beyond the current "payment period," if you withdraw prior to the next payment period, all charges collected for the next period will be refunded. If any portion of the tuition was paid from the proceeds of a loan or third party, the refund shall be sent to the lender, third party or, if appropriate, state or federal agency that guaranteed or reinsured the loan. If any balance remains on the loan, the student is responsible to repay the full amount of the loan plus interest. If any amount of the refund is in excess of the unpaid balance of the loan, it shall be first used to repay any student financial aid programs from which the student received benefits, in proportion to the amount of the benefits received, and any remaining amount shall be paid to the student.

If you did not receive all of the funds that you earned, you may be due a post-withdrawal disbursement. If your post-withdrawal disbursement includes loan funds, your school must get your permission before it can disburse them. You may choose to decline some or all of the loan funds so that you don't incur additional debt. Your school may automatically use all or a portion of your post-withdrawal disbursement of grant funds for tuition, fees, and room and board charges (as contracted with the school). The school needs your permission to use the post-withdrawal grant disbursement for all other school charges. If you do not give your permission (some schools ask for this when you enroll), you will be offered the funds. However, it may be in your best interest to allow the school to keep the funds to reduce your debt at the school.

There are some Title IV funds that you were scheduled to receive that cannot be disbursed to you once you withdraw because of other eligibility requirements. For example, if you are a first-time, first-year undergraduate student and you have not completed the first 30 days of your program before you

withdraw, you will not receive any Direct Loan funds that you would have received had you remained enrolled past the 30th day.

If you receive (or your school or parent receive on your behalf) excess Title IV program funds that must be returned, your school must return a portion of the excess equal to the lesser of:

1. your institutional charges multiplied by the unearned percentage of your funds, or

2. the entire amount of excess funds.

The school must return this amount even if it didn't keep this amount of your Title IV program funds. If your school is not required to return all of the excess funds, you must return the remaining amount. Any loan funds that you must return, you (or your parent for a Direct PLUS Loan) repay in accordance with the terms of the promissory note. That is, you make scheduled payments to the holder of the loan over a period of time.

Any amount of unearned grant funds that you must return is called an overpayment. The maximum amount of a grant overpayment that you must repay is half of the grant funds you received or were scheduled to receive. You do not have to repay a grant overpayment if the original amount of the overpayment is \$50 or less. You must make arrangements with your school or the Department of Education to return the unearned grant funds.

The requirements for Title IV program funds when you withdraw are separate from any refund policy that your school may have. Therefore, you may still owe funds to the school to cover unpaid institutional charges. Your school may also charge you for any Title IV program funds that the school was required to return. If you don't already know your school's refund policy, you should ask your school for a copy. Your school can also provide you with the requirements and procedures for officially withdrawing from school.

If you have questions about your Title IV program funds, you can call the Federal Student Aid Information Center at 1-800-4-FEDAID (1-800-433-3243). TTY users may call 1-800-730-8913. Information is also available on Student Aid on the Web at <u>www.studentaid.ed.gov</u>.

Return of Tuition Assistance Funds

Unearned TA will be refunded based on pro rata or proportional basis through 60% of the period for which the TA funds were provided. When a servicemember stops attending due to military service the school will work with the student for solutions so there is no debt due to returned portions of TA.

The institutes courses are taught in 20-day mods or four weeks. The instructional week is Monday through Friday.

Example of return of unearned TA:

Day 1-5	100% return
Day 6	70%
Day 7	65%
Day 8	60%
Day 9	55%
Day 10	50%
Day 11	45%
Day 12	40%
Day 13-20	0% return

Return of Title IV Funds Policy

Effective 10/7/2000, all financial aid (Title IV) recipients who withdraw and have completed 60% or less of the payment period for which they have been charged, are subject to the new federal refund regulations per 34 CFR 668, 682 & 685, published on November 1, 1999.

Federal regulations state that the amount of a Title IV refund is based on the percentage of Title IV funds earned by the student at the time of withdrawal. In order to determine whether Title IV funds must be returned, the school must calculate the following:

- 1. To determine the percentage of the payment period completed, the number of days attended in the payment period is divided by the total days in the payment period. *Days = calendar days for purposes of this formula, and therefore include weekends and holidays. Only scheduled breaks of 5 days or more and approved leaves of absence are excluded*
- 2. The net amount of Title IV funds disbursed that could have been disbursed for the payment period is multiplied by the percentage of the payment period completed. The result is the amount of earned Title IV aid
- 3. The earned aid is subtracted from the aid that was actually disbursed to, or on behalf of the student
- 4. The institution will return the lesser of the total earned aid or the unearned institutional charges for the payment period
- 5. Unearned aid is allocated back to the Title IV programs in the following order as specified by law:
- 6. Federal Direct Unsubsidized Stafford Loan Program
- 7. Federal Direct Subsidized Stafford Loan Program
- 8. Federal PLUS Program
- 9. If excess funds remain after repaying all outstanding loan amounts, the remaining excess shall be credited in the following order:
 - a. Federal Pell Grant Program
 - b. Federal SEOG Program
 - c. Other assistance awarded, under this title, for which return of funds is required

For the purpose of determining the amount you owe for the time you attended, you shall be deemed to have withdrawn from the course when any of the following occurs:

- You notify the Registrar's office of your withdrawal
- The school terminates your enrollment
- You fail to attend classes for ten (10) consecutive school days and do not return the eleventh (11th) day

Refunds when due are made without requiring a request from the student within 45 days.

If any portion of your tuition was paid from the proceeds of a loan, then the refund will be sent to the lender or to the agency that guaranteed the loan, if any. Any remaining amount of refund will first be used to repay any student financial aid programs from which you received benefits, in proportion to the amount of the benefits received. Any remaining amount will be paid to you.

NOTE: After the institution has allocated the unearned aid, any amount owed by the <u>student</u> to a grant program is reduced by 50%. Unearned loan funds received by the student are paid back as per the terms of the borrower's promissory note.

Determination of the Withdrawal Date

The student's withdrawal is the last date of academic attendance as determined by the institution from its attendance records. The withdrawal date for a student who does not return from an approved leave of absence is set retroactively to the last date of attendance, as determined by the institution's attendance records.

NOTE: A student who is on an approved leave of absence retains in-school status for purposes of Title IV loans. However, the student should be aware that if he or she does not return from a leave of absence, some or all of the grace period of the loan could have been used up, as the withdrawal date is set retroactively.

Federal Refund Requirements vs. State Refund Requirements

In addition to the federal refund requirements for Title IV recipients, the institution is required to calculate a California State Calculation, which is based on clock hours for the entire period of enrollment. If a student attends over 60% of the period of enrollment, he/she will owe 100% of the tuition. If a student attends less than 60%, a refund may be due. The refund for all students who withdraw, regardless of whether or not the student received Title IV funds, will be calculated as per California regulations, as required by the Bureau of Private Post-Secondary Education. However, the federal formula for return of Title IV funds may result in a larger refund than the state refund policy, in which case the institution and the student must return the sum which results in the larger of the two calculations to the appropriate Title IV program. Therefore, the student may, after Title IV funds are returned, owe a balance to the institution. Any credit balance remaining after refunding to the Title IV programs will be returned to the Direct Loan Programs in order to reduce the loan debt for the student. If the refund results in reducing the student's loan to zero, any remaining amount will be paid to the student.

Unsatisfactory Financial Progress Requirement

Violation of any of the conditions set forth in the signed Enrollment Agreement may lead to dismissal from school and/or probation. Failure to meet all financial obligations to the School may also lead to dismissal from school and/or probation.

Financial Aid Student Rights

Students have the right to know:

- Types of Financial Aid available at Advanced Training Associates.
- The basis for eligibility and the process of fulfilling those needs.
- When Financial Aid has been awarded and the conditions to which they are agreeing.
- The refund policy.

This information is available within this catalog and through the financial aid department.

Reinstatement of Financial Aid Eligibility

Financial aid recipients who lose their eligibility for financial benefits due to Unsatisfactory Progress or other forms of disciplinary actions may have their eligibility reinstated. Conditions for reinstatement include, but are not limited to, the achievement of academic standing consistent with graduation requirements. The student must request reinstatement. The President, School Director, and financial aid representative will review such requests after academic advisement with the student.

If a student receives a loan to pay for their educational program, the student will have the responsibility to repay the full amount of the loan plus interest, less the amount of any refund. If a student has received federal student financial aid funds, the student is entitled to a refund of the funds not paid from federal student financial aid programs.

Completion Rates by Program

Completion Rate Based on those that graduated within 150% of normal time as reported on the 2017 COE Annual Report

ALLIED HEALTH PROGRAMS	
Health Information Technician	100%
Medical Assistant	93%
Electrocardiogram Technician	***
TECHNOLOGY PROGRAMS	
Information Systems Technology	81%
FCC Commercial Radio Operations	* * *
Fiber Optics for Professionals	100%
Fiber Optics Installation Technology	100%
Radar Technology	* * *
Telecom Installation & Service Technology	100%
Software Development & Programming	***
CRIMINAL JUSTICE PROGRAMS Criminal Justice & Public Safety	***
DEGREE PROGRAMS Information Systems & Communications Technology AAT	100%
Medical Assistant AAS	100%
Software Development & Programming AAT	***
Health Information Technician AAS	* * *
AS in Criminal Justice	***

***No graduates available for graduation during the reporting period.

ACADEMICS

Faculty and Curriculum

The Faculty members of Advanced Training Associates are selected not only for their education, credentials, work experience, but also for their dedication, enthusiasm and ability to motivate students to their highest level of academic achievement. Students are urged to meet with their instructor for assistance when needed. Curricula for all programs have been designed, not only to provide career skills, but to also qualify students for immediate employment opportunities in a relatively short period of time

Allied Health Programs

PROGRAM	CLOCK HOURS	PAGE
Health Information Technician	760	34
Medical Assistant	760	36
Electrocardiogram Technician	60	38

HEALTH INFORMATION TECHNICIAN

The objective of this program has been designed to prepare students for entry-level employment in a medical front office, hospital office setting, or medical insurance company. Typical job titles for Health Information Technicians entering the field would be: health information technician, medical secretary, medical insurance biller, and medical receptionist. The content of the program provides the student with specialized training in industry-current medical administrative procedures. Instruction in medical terminology, anatomy and physiology, processing insurance forms, scheduling appointments, collections, medical bookkeeping, and other critical patient services will be emphasized. Students will be able to have specialized hands-on training on processing equipment. This instruction ranges from introductory keyboarding and electronic calculating to current word processing skills in MS Word for Windows. At the completion of the classroom instruction, the student will receive supervised job-related skills on externship at a selected insurance company, hospital or medical office setting to complete a well-rounded education.

Successful completion of this course will lead to credit towards the Health Information Technician Associate of Applied Science Degree Program.

30 Classroom Weeks - 20 hours per week	Monday through Friday 4 hours per day
4 Weeks of Externship (estimated at 40 hours per week)	Monday through Friday hours to be arranged 8 hours per day
34 Total Program - Weeks	
760 Clock Hours / 36 Semester Credit Hours	

DAY/EVENING PROGRAM SCHEDULE

This program does not have a cumulative final test or examination required for the completion of any program.

Course	TITLE	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
AP 114	Anatomy and Physiology I	40	2.66	40	0
AP 115	Anatomy and Physiology II	40	2.66	40	0
MT 110	Medical Terminology	60	4.00	60	0
PH 101	Introduction to Pharmacology	20	1.33	20	0
MO 110	Medical Office Administration	40	2.66	40	0
COD 101	Introduction to Medical Insurance/Coding	40	1.66	10	30
PC 101	Patient Communication	20	0.99	10	10
MO 120	Medical Principles and Foundations	40	2.66	40	0
KB 101	Keyboarding	20	0.66	0	20
MO 130	Collections & Reimbursement Procedures	40	2.33	30	10
MO 140	Introduction to Medical Bookkeeping & HIT	40	2.33	30	10
EHR 110	Electronic Health Records	40	1.99	20	20
COD 110	ICD-10-CM Coding	40	1.99	20	20
EHR 120	Electronic Health Records II	40	1.66	10	30
COD 120	Medical Coding II	40	1.66	10	30
CS 103	Career Development	40	1.99	20	20
EX 111	Externship for HIT	160	3.55	0	160
	PROGRAM TOTALS	760	36	390	370

HEALTH INFORMATION TECHNICIAN

DAY/EVENING SCHEDULE – MONDAY – FRIDAY

MODULE 1

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Anatomy and Physiology I	4	40	гээ	2
Anatomy and Physiology II	4	40	5.32	2

MODULE 2

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Medical Terminology	4	60	гээ	3
Introduction to Pharmacology	4	20	5.33	1

MODULE 3

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Medical Office Administration	4	40	4.33	2
Introduction to Medical Insurance/Coding	4	40	4.33	2

MODULE 4

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Patient Communication	4	20		1
Medical Principles and Foundations	4	40	4.31	2
Keyboarding	4	20		1

MODULE 5

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Introduction to Medical Bookkeeping & HIT	4	40	1.66	2
Collections & Reimbursement Procedures	4	40	4.66	2

MODULE 6

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Electronic Health Records	4	40	3.98	2
ICD-10-CM Coding	4	40	3.98	2

MODULE 7

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Electronic Health Records II	4	40	3.32	2
Medical Coding II	4	40	3.32	2

MODULE 8

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Externship for HIT	8	160	5.54	4
Career Development	4	40	5.54	2

NOTE: Courses are organized in modular form and the School reserves the right to modify sequence and content.

MEDICAL ASSISTANT

The objective of this program is to prepare students for entry-level employment in a variety of medical settings, such as a physician's office or medical clinic. Typical job titles for Medical Assistants entering the field would be Clinical Medical Assistant, Electrocardiogram Technician, Medical Secretary, and Medical Receptionist. The content of the program provides the student with specialized training in industry-current medical clinical and administrative procedures. Instruction in the clinical aspect of the program includes medical terminology, anatomy and physiology, patient relations, use and care of diagnostic equipment, venipuncture, injections, infection control protocol, EKG operations, urinalysis, and treatment procedures commonly performed in a medical setting. The administrative aspect includes scheduling appointments, medical bookkeeping, processing insurance forms, and other critical patient services.

Successful completion of this course will lead to credit towards the Medical Assistant Associate of Applied Science Degree Program.

DAY/EVENING PROGRAM SCHEDULE

30 weeks of instruction - 20 hours per week	Monday through Friday 4 hours per day
4 weeks of Externship (estimated 40 hours per week)	Monday through Friday 8 hours per day
34 Total Program - Weeks	
760 Clock Hours / 33 Semester Credit Hours	

This program does not have a cumulative final test or examination required for the completion of any program.

Course	DESCRIPTION Medical Assistant	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
AP 114	Anatomy and Physiology I	40	2.66	40	0
AP 115	Anatomy and Physiology II	40	2.66	40	0
MT 110	Medical Terminology	60	4.00	60	0
PH 101	Introduction to Pharmacology	20	1.33	20	0
MO 110	Medical Office Administration	40	2.33	30	10
COD 101	Introduction to Medical Insurance/Coding	20	0.99	10	10
PC 101	Patient Communication	20	0.99	10	10
MO 120	Medical Principles and Foundations	40	1.99	20	20
KB 101	Keyboarding	40	1.66	10	30
CP 110	Clinical Procedures I	40	1.66	10	30
CP 120	Clinical Procedures II	40	1.66	10	30
CP 130	Clinical Procedures III	20	0.83	5	15
LP 110	Laboratory Procedures I	20	0.99	10	10
LP 120	Laboratory Procedures II	40	1.66	10	30
CP 140	Clinical Procedures IV	40	1.66	10	30
CP 150	Clinical Procedures V	40	1.66	10	30
CS 103	Career Development	40	1.66	10	30
EX 111	Externship	160	3.55	0	160
	PROGRAM TOTALS	760	33.94	315	445

MEDICAL ASSISTANT

DAY/EVENING SCHEDULE – MONDAY – FRIDAY

MODULE 1						
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks		
Anatomy and Physiology I	4	40	гээ	2		
Anatomy and Physiology II	4	40	5.32	2		

MODULE 2

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Medical Terminology	4	60	гээ	3
Introduction to Pharmacology	4	20	5.33	1

MODULE 3

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Medical Office Administration	4	40		2
Introduction to Medical Insurance/Coding	4	20	4.31	1
Patient Communication	4	20		1

MODULE 4

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Medical Principles and Foundations	4	40	2.65	2
Keyboarding	4	40	3.65	2

MODULE 5

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Clinical Procedures I	4	40	2 22	2
Clinical Procedures II	4	40	3.32	2

MODULE 6

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Clinical Procedures III	4	20		1
Laboratory Procedures I	4	40	3.48	2
Laboratory Procedures II	4	20		1

MODULE 7

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Clinical Procedures IV	4	40	2 22	2
Clinical Procedures V	4	40	3.32	2

MODULE 8

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Career Development	4	40	E 01	2
Externship	8	160	5.21	4

ELECTROCARDIOGRAM TECHNICIAN

The objective of program is preparing individuals, under the supervision of physicians and nurses, to administer Electrocardiography (EKG/ECG) diagnostic examinations and report results to the treatment team. Including instruction in basic anatomy and physiology, the cardiovascular system, medical terminology, cardiovascular medications and effects, patient care, and EKG/ECG administration, equipment operation and maintenance, interpretation of cardiac rhythm, patient record management, professional standards and ethics. Upon successful completion of this course, students will be eligible to take the national certification exam.

Successful completion of this course will lead to credit towards the Medical Assistant Associate of Applied Science Degree Program.

DAY/EVENING PROGRAM SCHEDULE

3 weeks of instruction - 20 hours per week	Monday through Friday 4 hours per day
3 Total Program – Weeks	
60 Clock Hours / 3 Semester Credit Hours	

Course	DESCRIPTION	Clock Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
AP 118	Anatomy and Physiology for EKG/ECG	10	10	0
MT 118	Medical Terminology for EKG/ECG	10	10	0
EKG 190	Electrocardiography Procedures	40	20	20
	PROGRAM TOTALS	60	40	20

Technology Programs

PROGRAMS	CLOCK HOURS	PAGE
Information Systems Technology	720	40
Software Development & Programming	720	42
FCC Commercial Radio Operations	40	44
Fiber Optics for Professionals	125	45
Fiber Optics Installation Technology	40	46
Radar Technology	20	47
Telecom Installation and Service Technology	260	48

INFORMATION SYSTEMS TECHNOLOGY

The objective of this program is to prepare the student for exciting positions in the expanding field of Information Technology. Over the course of nine months, this program will provide the student with knowledge and skills acquired from intensive classroom study and hands-on labs. This course will provide the fundamentals of cybersecurity, Java programming, computer networks, computer hardware, web design, and fiber optics.

Once a student completes all graduation requirements, he/she will have the opportunity to test for certifications from the Fiber Optics Association. Certification is available but not a requirement to complete the course. No license or diploma will be issued until successful completion of the program and when all tuition and fees are paid in full.

Equipment the students may use includes, but is not limited to: desktop computers, optical time domain reflectometers (OTDR), optical loss test set (OLTS), light score & power meters (LSPM), visual fault locators (VFL), fusion splicers, mechanical splices, cleavers, crimpers, fiber strippers, Kevlar shears, scribes, microscopes, and polishing films.

Successful completion of this course will lead to credit towards the Information Systems & Communication Technology AAT Degree Program.

DAY/EVENING PROGRAM SCHEDULE

36 weeks of instruction - 20 hours per week	Monday through Friday 4 hours per day
36 Total Program – Weeks	
720 Clock Hours / 38 Semester Credit Hours	

Course	DESCRIPTION	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
CT 102	Network Operations	80	4.53	56	24
CT 105	Java Programming	80	4.53	56	24
CT 110	Fundamentals of Cybersecurity	80	4.53	56	24
CT 115	Computer Hardware	80	4.79	64	16
CT 116	Computer Operating Systems (Windows)	80	4.53	56	24
CT 117	Computer Networks	80	4.53	56	24
CT 120	Linux	80	4.53	56	24
CT 100	Web Technologies & Database Management	80	3.26	18	62
CT 150	Basic Fiber Optics	60	2.66	20	40
CS 106	Career Development	20	0.99	10	10
	PROGRAM TOTALS	720	38	438	282

INFORMATION SYSTEMS TECHNOLOGY

DAY/EVENING SCHEDULE – MONDAY - FRIDAY

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Network Operations	4	80	4.53	4
MODULE 2				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Java Programming	4	80	4.53	4
MODULE 3				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Fundamentals of Cybersecurity	4	80	4.53	4
MODULE 4				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Computer Hardware	4	80	4.79	4
MODULE 5				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Computer Operating Systems (Windows)	4	80	4.53	4
MODULE 6				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Computer Networks	4	80	4.53	4
MODULE 7				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Linux	4	80	4.53	4
MODULE 8				1
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Web Technologies & Database Management	4	80	3.26	4
MODULE 9				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Basic Fiber Optics	4	60	Sem. creat	3
Career Development	4	20	3.65	1

SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT & PROGRAMMING

The objective of the Software Development program has been designed to prepare students for entrylevel employment in a variety of office settings. Typical job titles for software developers entering the field would be software developer, web designer, systems programmer, and application developer. The content of the program provides the student with specialized training in industry-current programming languages and computer-based systems. Instruction in web development aspect of the program includes coding in HTML5, CSS3, JavaScript, XML. The main programming languages included in the program are JAVA, C#/C++, RUBY, VB.NET.

Successful completion of this course will lead to credit towards the Information Systems & Communication Technology AAT Degree Program.

DAY/EVENING PROGRAM SCHEDULE

36 weeks of instruction - 20 hours per week	Monday through Friday 4 hours per day
36 Total Program - Weeks	
720 Clock Hours / 37 Semester Credit Hours	

Course	DESCRIPTION Software Development & Programming	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
SDPM 101	Introduction to Software Development and Project Management	80	5.33	80	0
PLDP 101	Core Programming Logic and Design Principles	80	4.66	60	20
OOP 101	Object-Oriented Programming	20	1.33	20	0
OOP 120	C#/C++ Programming Language	60	2.66	20	40
OOP 130	Java Programming	80	3.99	40	40
SQL 104	Understanding SQL and Databases	80	3.99	40	40
WEB 110	Web Development	80	3.99	40	40
CSWS 103	Client-Side Web Scripting	80	3.99	40	40
SSWA 104	Server-Side Web Application	80	3.99	40	40
MAD 110	Mobile Application Development	60	2.66	20	40
CS 106	Career Development	20	0.99	10	10
	PROGRAM TOTALS	720	37.58	410	310

SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT & PROGRAMMING

DAY/EVENING SCHEDULE – MONDAY - FRIDAY

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credits	Total Weeks
Introduction to Software Development and			E 00	
Project Management	4	80	5.33	4
MODULE 2				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credits	Total Weeks
Core Programming Logic and Design Principles	4	80	4.66	4
MODULE 3				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credits	Total Weeks
Object-Oriented Programming	4	20		1
C#/C++ Programming Language	4	60	3.99	3
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,				
MODULE 4				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credits	Total Weeks
Java Programming	4	80	3.99	4
MODULE 5				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credits	Total Weeks
Understanding SQL and Databases	4	80	3.99	4
MODULE 6 Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credits	Total Weeks
Web Development	4	80	3.99	4
Web Development	-	00	5.55	-
MODULE 7				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credits	Total Weeks
Client-Side Web Scripting	4	80	3.99	4
MODULE 8				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credits	Total Weeks
Server-Side Web Application	4	80	3.99	4
MODULE 9				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credits	Total Weeks
Mobile Application Development	4	60	2.65	3
Career Development	4	20	3.65	1

FCC COMMERCIAL RADIO OPERATIONS

The objective of the FCC Commercial Radio Operations (FCC) program is to prepare students for the Commercial Radio Operator license examination and potential licensure through the Electronics Technicians Association (ETA) International and by the Federal Communications Commission (FCC); Licensure is not a requirement to complete the program. This program covers topics under FCC Elements 1 & 3, General Radiotelephone Operator License (GROL), which allow students to understand how to adjust, maintain, or internally repair FCC licensed radiotelephone transmitters in the aviation, maritime, and international fixed public radio services. A diploma will be issued upon successful completion of the program and when all tuition and fees are paid in full. In order to receive an FCC Commercial Radio Operator License, a student must pass the exam and certify that they are eligible under FCC Licensure eligibility section 95.5 of the Commission's rules. The FCC website is at www.fcc.gov. Equipment the students may use includes, but is not limited to, desktop computers, oscilloscopes, and volt-ohmmeters.

DAY/EVENING PROGRAM SCHEDULE

20 hours per week	Monday through Friday 4 hours per day
40 Clock Hours / 2 Semester Credit Hours	

Course	DESCRIPTION	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours	
FCC 150	FCC GROL	40	2.66	40	0	
	PROGRAM TOTALS	40	2.66	40	0	

FIBER OPTICS FOR PROFESSIONALS

The objective of the Fiber Optics for Professionals (FFP) program is to prepare students to be competent in Fiber Optic technology disciplines through classroom training and practical hands-on application. The student will learn cable, panel, and closure preparation, fusion splicing, optical loss, reflection testing, and Optical time-domain reflectometer (ODTR) operations. This will develop a practical understanding of the knowledge and skill requirements needed to design, install, test, and maintain a Fiber to the Home/Premises/Curb (FTTx) network. The student will learn about specific technologies and recommendations specified by ITU-T G.983 Passive Optical Network (PON) standards from topology to active and passive components. While not a requirement for program completion, successful students will be eligible for certifications as a Fiber Optic Technician (CFOT), Fiber Optics Technician in Splicing (CFOT/S), Fiber Optics Technician in Testing (CFOT/T), and/or as a Certified Fiber Optic Technician for Fiber to the Home/Premises/Curb (CFOT/H, FTTx) through the Fiber Optics Association (FOA). A diploma will be issued until successful completion of the program and when all tuition and fees are paid in full. Equipment the students may use includes, but is not limited to, desktop computers, oscilloscopes, volt-ohmmeters, optical time domain reflectometers (OTDR), optical loss test set (OLTS), light score & power meters (LSPM), visual fault locators (VFL), fusion splicers, mechanical splices, cleavers, crimpers, fiber strippers, Kevlar shears, scribes, microscopes, and polishing films.

Successful completion of this course will lead to credit towards the Information Systems & Communication Technology AAT Degree Program.

DAY/EVENING PROGRAM	SCHEDULE
20 hours per week	Monday through Friday 4 hours per day
125 Clock Hours / 7 Semester Credit Hours	

Course	DESCRIPTION	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
FO 101	Basic Fiber Optics	40	2.49	35	5
CPCT 110	Basic Premises Cabling (CPCT)	30	1.66	20	10
FFP 103	Fiber to the Premises – FTTx (CFOS-H)	20	0.99	10	10
FFP 104	Advanced Fiber Optics – Splicing (CFOS-S)	20	1.16	15	5
FFP 105	Advanced Fiber Optics – Testing (CFOS-T)	15	0.82	10	5
	PROGRAM TOTALS	125	7.12	90	35

FIBER OPTICS INSTALLATION TECHNOLOGY

The objective of the Fiber Optics Installation Technology (FOIT) program is to prepare students to be competent in the basic Fiber Optic technology discipline through classroom training and practical hands-on application. The student will learn knowledge of the fundamentals of lightwave technology, basic optical theory, optical fiber technology, components and connectors, the splicing process, fiber optics applications, optical signals, system performance measurements, and proper fiber optic lab safety. While not a requirement for program completion, successful students will be eligible for certification as a *Fiber Optic Technician* (CFOT) through the Fiber Optics Association (FOA). A diploma will not be issued until successful completion of the program and when all tuition and fees are paid in full. Equipment the students may use includes, but is not limited to, desktop computers, oscilloscopes, volt-ohmmeters, optical time domain reflectometers (OTDR), optical loss test set (OLTS), light score & power meters (LSPM), visual fault locators (VFL), fusion splicers, mechanical splices, cleavers, crimpers, fiber strippers, Kevlar shears, scribes, microscopes, and polishing films.

Successful completion of this course will lead to credit towards the Information Systems & Communication Technology AAT Degree Program.

DAY/EVENING PROGRAM SCHEDULE

20 hours per week	Monday through Friday 4 hours per day
40 Clock Hours / 2 Semester Credit Hours	

Course	DESCRIPTION	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
FO 101	Basic Fiber Optics	40	2.39	32	8
	PROGRAM TOTALS	40	2.39	32	8

RADAR TECHNOLOGY

The objective of the Radar Technology (RADAR) program is to prepare students for the Radar Endorsement examination and potential licensure endorsement through the Electronics Technicians Association (ETA) International and by the Federal Communications Commission (FCC); Licensure is only available to those with a commercial radio operator license and therefore is not a requirement to complete the program. This program covers topics under FCC Element 8, Ship Radar Endorsement, allowing successful students to understand how to repair, maintain, or internally adjust ship radar equipment. A diploma will be issued upon successful completion of the program and when all tuition and fees are paid in full. In order to receive an FCC Commercial Radio Operator License endorsement a student must pass the exam and certify that they are eligible under FCC Licensure eligibility section 95.5 of the Commission's rules. The FCC website is at <u>www.fcc.gov</u>. Equipment the students may use includes, but is not limited to, desktop computers, oscilloscopes, and volt-ohmmeters.

DAY/EVENING PROGRAM SCHEDULE

20 hours per week	Monday through Friday 4 hours per day
20 Clock Hours / 1 Semester Credit Hours	

Course	DESCRIPTION	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours	
RAD 101	Radar	20	1.33	20	0	
	PROGRAM TOTALS	20	1.33	20	0	

TELECOM INSTALLATION & SERVICE TECHNOLOGY

The objective of Telecom Installation & Service Technology (telecom) program is to provide the student with the knowledge and skills required by the industry for an entry-level position as a Fiber Optic Cable Installer, Electronics Technician, and related positions such as Marine Radio Technician or Aircraft Radio Technician. Included in the course is preparation and testing for the Associate Electronics Technician Certification for the Electronics Technicians Association International, Fiber Optics Installer (CFOT) Certification for the Fiber Optics Association and the General Radiotelephone Operators License (GROL) with Radar Endorsement for the Federal Communications Commission (FCC). Licensure is available but not a requirement to complete the course. A diploma will be issued upon successful completion of the program and when all tuition and fees are paid in full. In order to receive an FCC Commercial Radio Operator License a student must pass the exam and certify that they are eligible under FCC Licensure eligibility section 95.5 of the Commission's rules. The FCC website is at www.fcc.gov. Equipment the students may use includes, but is not limited to, desktop computers, oscilloscopes, volt-ohmmeters, optical time domain reflectometers (OTDR), optical loss test set (OLTS), light score & power meters (LSPM), visual fault locators (VFL), fusion splicers, mechanical splices, cleavers, crimpers, fiber strippers, Kevlar shears, scribes, microscopes, and polishing films.

Successful completion of this course will lead to credit towards the Information Systems & Communication Technology AAT Degree Program.

DAY/EVENING PROGRAM SCHEDULE

20 hours per week	Monday through Friday
	4 hours per day
225 Clock Hours / 13 Semester Credit Hours	

Course	DESCRIPTION	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
FO 101	Basic Fiber Optics	40	2.39	32	8
FO 203	Fiber to the Premises – FTTx	40	2.39	32	8
FO 202	Advanced Fiber Optics – Testing (CFOS-T)	45	2.50	30	15
ET 101	Basic Electronics	40	2.66	40	0
FCC 151	FCC GROL/Radar	60	4.00	60	0
	PROGRAM TOTALS	225	13.94	194	31

Criminal Justice Programs

PROGRAM	CLOCK HOURS	PAGE
Criminal Justice & Public Safety	720	50

CRIMINAL JUSTICE & PUBLIC SAFETY

The objective of the Criminal Justice and Public Safety diploma program is designed to prepare graduates for entry into state, local, or federal law enforcement, corrections, or private security. Students will study the U.S. Constitution, American court systems, Federal and California state laws, and past and current criminal trends. Students will be prepared to properly articulate, format and complete various types of reports and professional communication. Prior to graduation, students will be introduced to the application process for various local, state, and federal agencies.

Students will be required to maintain personal physical fitness throughout the program and pass a standardized physical assessment prior to graduation. Upon completion of all theory classes, students will be required to complete a practical capstone, concentrating on real-world scenarios. Students will train with various equipment, to include simulated firearms and dry-fire range, forensic testing kits (i.e., fingerprinting, blood splatter, bullet trajectory, gun powder analysis), and officer duty belt with handcuffs and attachments.

Successful completion of this course will lead to credit towards the Associate of Science in Criminal Justice Degree Program.

DAY/EVENING PROGRAM SCH	EDULE
36 weeks of instruction - 20 hours per week	Monday through Friday 4 hours per day
36 Total Program – Weeks	
720 Clock Hours / 40 Semester Credit Hours	

Course	DESCRIPTION Criminal Justice & Public Safety	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
LS 101	Introduction to Criminal Justice	40	2.66	40	0
LS 110	Criminal Law	40	2.66	40	0
LS 120	Criminal Procedure and the Constitution	40	2.66	40	0
LS 130	Deviance & Violence	40	1.99	20	20
LS 140	Criminal Evidence	40	2.66	40	0
LS 150	Gangs and Narcotics	40	2.66	40	0
LS 160	American Criminal Courts	40	2.66	40	0
LS 201	Communication & Report Writing	40	1.99	20	20
LS 203	Public Safety Hiring Process	40	1.99	20	20
CS 108	Career Development	40	1.99	20	20
HLS 101	Introduction to Homeland Security & Terrorism	40	2.66	40	0
CO 101	Introduction to Corrections	40	2.66	40	0
CT 101	Principles of Investigation	40	2.66	40	0
CPS 101	Introduction to Corporate Security	40	2.66	40	0
PHYS 101	Physical Fitness for Public Safety	40	1.66	10	30
ENG 101	Writing I	40	1.66	10	30
STP 200	Strategic Operations (STOPS) Capstone	80	3.33	20	60
	PROGRAM TOTALS	720	40.88	510	210

CRIMINAL JUSTICE & PUBLIC SAFETY

DAY/EVENING SCHEDULE – MONDAY - FRIDAY

MODULE 1				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Introduction to Criminal Justice	4	40	F 22	2
Criminal Law	4	40	5.32	2

MODULE 2

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Criminal Procedure and the Constitution	4	40	4.65	2
Deviance & Violence	4	40	4.65	2

MODULE 3

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Criminal Evidence	4	40	гээ	2
Gangs and Narcotics	4	40	5.32	2

MODULE 4

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
American Criminal Courts	4	40	4.65	2
Communication & Report Writing	4	40	4.65	2

MODULE 5

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Public Safety Hiring Process	4	40	2.00	2
Career Development	4	40	3.98	2

MODULE 6

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Introduction to Homeland Security & Terrorism	4	40	5.32	2
Introduction to Corrections	4	40		2

MODULE 7

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Principles of Investigation	4	40	F 22	2
Introduction to Corporate Security	4	40	5.32	2

MODULE 8

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Physical Fitness for Public Safety	4	40	3.32	2
Writing I	4	40	5.32	2

MODULE 9

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Strategic Operations (STOPS) Capstone	4	80	3.99	4

Associate Degree Programs

COURSE	CLOCK HOURS	PAGE
Information Systems & Communication Technology, AAT	1220	53
Software Development & Programming, AAT	1220	57
Medical Assistant, Associate of Applied Science	1240	60
Health Information Technician, AAS	1260	64
Associate of Science in Criminal Justice	1220	68

INFORMATION SYSTEMS & COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY ASSOCIATE OF APPLIED TECHNOLOGY

The objective of this program is to provide a broad background in modern information and communications systems with instruction and practical application in electronics, computer networking, and fiber optics. Students will study the basics of electronics and how they are implemented in data communication devices. They will be trained in fiber optic theory and the components and processes of structured cabling. In addition, students will learn installation and troubleshooting of computer hardware and operating systems, database management, and the basics of web design. A degree will be issued upon successful completion of the program and when all tuition and fees are paid in full. Once a student completes all graduation requirements, he/she will have the opportunity to test for certifications from the Fiber Optics Association. Certification is available but not a requirement to complete the course. Equipment the students may use includes, but is not limited to, desktop computers, oscilloscopes, volt-ohmmeters, optical time domain reflectometers (OTDR), optical loss test set (OLTS), light score & power meters (LSPM), visual fault locators (VFL), fusion splicers, mechanical splices, cleavers, crimpers, fiber strippers, Kevlar shears, scribes, microscopes, and polishing films.

The Associate of Applied Technology is available in three different emphasis areas. Students will be automatically enrolled in the *IT Professional* emphasis unless discussed with admissions.

Successful completion of this program will lead to an Associate of Applied Technology Degree.

DAY/EVENING PROGRAM SCH	EDULE
61 weeks of instruction - 20 hours per week	Monday through Friday 4 hours per day
61 Total Program - Weeks	
1220 Clock Hours / 65 Semester Credit Hours	

Course	DESCRIPTION General Education	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
BE 101	Business Ethics	40	2.66	40	0
PSY 103	Introduction to Psychology	60	4.00	60	0
SCI 101	Earth Science	60	3.72	52	8
MTH 101	College Math	60	3.72	52	8
CPA 101	Business Computer Applications	40	1.99	20	20
HIS 101	U.S. History	60	4.00	60	0
Course	DESCRIPTION Information Systems Technology	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
CT 102	Network Operations	80	4.53	56	24
CT 105	Java Programming	80	4.53	56	24
CT 110	Fundamentals of Cybersecurity	80	4.53	56	24
CT 115	Computer Hardware	80	479	64	16
CT 116	Computer Operating Systems (Windows)	80	4.53	56	24
CT 117	Computer Networks	80	4.53	56	24
CT 120	Linux	80	4.53	56	24
CT 100	Web Technologies & Database Management	80	3.26	18	62
CT 150	Basic Fiber Optics	60	2.66	20	40
CS 106	Career Development	20	0.99	10	10

Course	DESCRIPTION IT Professional Electives	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
FO 201	Advanced Fiber Optics – Fiber to the Premises (FTTx/CFOS-H)	40	1.49	5	35
FO 202	Advanced Fiber Optics – Testing (CFOS-T)	30	1.00	0	30
FO 206	Advanced Fiber Optics – Splicing (CFOS-S)	30	1.82	25	5
APL 205	CompTIA Certification Review	80	3.33	20	60
	PROGRAM TOTALS	1220	65	762	458

Course	DESCRIPTION Fiber Optic Professional Electives	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
FO 201	Advanced Fiber Optics – Fiber to the Premises (FTTx/CFOS-H)	40	1.49	5	35
FO 202	Advanced Fiber Optics – Testing (CFOS-T)	30	1.00	0	30
FO 206	Advanced Fiber Optics – Splicing (CFOS-S)	30	1.82	25	5
APL 205	Basic Premises Cabling (CPCT)	80	3.33	20	60
	PROGRAM TOTALS	1220	65	762	458

Course	DESCRIPTION Telecommunications Professional Electives	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
FO 201	Advanced Fiber Optics – Fiber to the Premises (FTTx/CFOS-H)	40	1.49	5	35
FO 202	Advanced Fiber Optics – Testing (CFOS-T)	30	1.00	0	30
ET 201	Electronics	60	3.16	35	25
FCC 160	FCC GROL/Radar	50	1.99	10	40
	PROGRAM TOTALS	1220	65	762	458

INFORMATION SYSTEMS & COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY

ASSOCIATE OF APPLIED TECHNOLOGY

DAY/EVENING SCHEDULE – MONDAY - FRIDAY

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Network Operations	4	80	4.53	4
MODULE 2 Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Java Programming	4	80	4.53	4
		80	4.55	
MODULE 3				1
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Fundamentals of Cybersecurity	4	80	4.53	4
MODULE 4				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Computer Hardware	4	80	4.79	4
Computer Operating Systems (Windows)	4	80	4.53	4
MODULE 6		Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Subject Areas Computer Networks	Hours Per Day 4	80	4.53	4
MODULE 7		Tabalilaria		T -4-134/1
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day 4	Total Hours 80	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Linux	4	80	4.53	4
MODULE 8				1
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Web Technologies & Database Management	4	80	3.26	4
MODULE 9				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Basic Fiber Optics	4	60	3.65	3
Career Development	4	20	5.05	1
MODULE 10 (IT Professional Electives)				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Advanced Fiber Optics –	Δ	40		
Fiber to the Premises (FTTx/CFOS-H)	4		1 3 1	2
Advanced Fiber Optics – Testing (CFOS-T)	4	30	4.31	1.5
Advanced Fiber Optics – Splicing (CFOS-S)	4	30		1.5
MODULE 11 (IT Drofossion of Floatings)				
MODULE 11 (IT Professional Electives)				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks

MODULE 11				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
U.S. History	4	60	F 4F	3
MS Word/Business Ethics	4	20	5.15	1

MODULE 13

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Introduction to Psychology	4	60	F 1F	3
MS PowerPoint/Business Ethics	4	20	5.15	1

MODULE 14

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Earth Science	4	60	4.87	3
MS Excel I/Business Ethics	4	20	4.87	1

MODULE 15

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
College Math	4	60	4.87	3
MS Excel II/Business Ethics	4	20	4.87	1

SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT & PROGRAMMING ASSOCIATE OF APPLIED TECHNOLOGY

The objective of the Software Development & Programming Associates of Applied Technology program has been designed to prepare students for entry-level employment in a variety of office settings. Typical job titles for software developers entering the field would be software developer, web designer, systems programmer, and application developer. The content of the program provides the student with specialized training in industry-current programming languages and computer-based systems. Instruction in web development aspect of the program includes coding in HTML5, CSS3, JavaScript, XML. The main programming languages included in the program are JAVA, C#/C++, RUBY, VB.NET. Students are prepared to sit for the Microsoft Certified Solution Developer (MCSD) Certification.

Successful completion of this program will lead to an Associate of Applied Technology Degree.

DAY/EVENING PROGRAM SCHEDULE

61 weeks of instruction - 20 hours per week	Monday through Friday 4 hours per day
61 Total Program - Weeks	
1220 Clock Hours / 64 Semester Credit Hours	

Course	DESCRIPTION General Education	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
BE 101	Business Ethics	40	2.66	40	0
PSY 103	Introduction to Psychology	60	4.00	60	0
SCI 101	Earth Science	60	3.72	52	8
MTH 101	College Math	60	3.72	52	8
CPA 101	Business Computer Applications	40	1.99	20	20
HIS 101	U.S. History	60	4.00	60	0
Course	DESCRIPTION Software Development & Programming	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
SDPM 101	Introduction to Software Development and Project Management	80	5.33	80	0
PLDP 101	Core Programming Logic and Design Principles	80	4.66	60	20
OOP 101	Object-Oriented Programming	20	1.33	20	0
OOP 120	C#/C++ Programming Language	60	2.66	20	40
OOP 130	Java Programming	80	3.99	40	40
SQL 104	Understanding SQL and Databases	80	3.99	40	40
WEB 110	Web Development	80	3.99	40	40
CSWS 103	Client-Side Web Scripting	80	3.99	40	40
SSWA 104	Server-Side Web Application	80	3.99	40	40
MAD 110	Mobile Application Development	60	2.66	20	40
CS 106	Career Development	20	0.99	10	10
Course	DESCRIPTION Associate of Applied Technology	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
SDC 200	Software Development Capstone Project	80	2.99	10	70
MCSD 200	MCSD Certification	80	3.99	40	40
	PROGRAM TOTALS	1200	64	744	456

SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT & PROGRAMMING Associate of Applied Technology

DAY/EVENING SCHEDULE – MONDAY - FRIDAY

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credits	Total Weeks
Introduction to Software Development and Project Management	4	80	5.33	4
MODULE 2				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credits	Total Weeks
Core Programming Logic and Design Principles	4	80	4.66	4
MODULE 3				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credits	Total Weeks
Object-Oriented Programming	4	20	3.99	1
C#/C++ Programming Language	4	60	5.99	3
MODULE 4				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credits	Total Weeks
Java Programming	4	80	3.99	4
MODULE 5				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credits	Total Weeks
Understanding SQL and Databases	4	80	3.99	4
MODULE 6		1		
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credits	Total Weeks
Web Development	4	80	3.99	4
MODULE 7				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credits	Total Weeks
Client-Side Web Scripting	4	80	3.99	4
MODULE 8		1		I
ubject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credits	Total Week
erver-Side Web Application	4	80	3.99	4
MODULE 9		1		1
ubject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credits	Total Week
Nobile Application Development	4	60	3.65	3
areer Development	4	20		1
MODULE 10				
ubject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Week
oftware Development Capstone Project	4	80	2.99	4
MODULE 11				
ubject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weel

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
MCSD Certification	4	80	3.99	4

MODULE 12				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
U.S. History	4	60	F 1F	3
MS Word/Business Ethics	4	20	5.15	1

MODULE 13

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Introduction to Psychology	4	60	F 1F	3
MS PowerPoint/Business Ethics	4	20	5.15	1

MODULE 14				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Earth Science	4	60	4.07	3
MS Excel I/Business Ethics	4	20	4.87	1

MODULE 15

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
College Math	4	60	4.07	3
MS Excel II/Business Ethics	4	20	4.87	1

MEDICAL ASSISTANT ASSOCIATE OF APPLIED SCIENCE

The Objective of the Medical Assistant Associate of Applied Science program has been designed to prepare students for entry-level employment in a variety of medical settings, such as a physician's office or medical clinic. Typical job titles for Medical Assistants entering the field would be Clinical Medical Assistant, Electrocardiogram Technician, Medical Secretary, and Medical Receptionist. The content of the program provides the student with specialized training in industry-current medical clinical and administrative procedures. Instruction in the clinical aspect of the program includes medical terminology, anatomy and physiology, patient relations, use and care of diagnostic equipment, venipuncture, injections, infection control protocol, EKG operations, urinalysis and treatment procedures commonly performed in a medical setting. The administrative aspect includes scheduling appointments, medical bookkeeping, processing insurance forms, and other critical patient services.

Successful completion of this course will lead an Associate of Applied Science Degree.

Monday through Friday 4 hours per day
Monday through Friday MA extern 8 hours per day

DAY/EVENING PROGRAM SCHEDULE

Course	DESCRIPTION General Education	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
BE 101	Business Ethics	40	2.66	40	0
PSY 103	Introduction to Psychology	60	4.00	60	0
SCI 101	Earth Science	60	3.72	52	8
MTH 101	College Math	60	3.72	52	8
CPA 101	Business Computer Applications	40	1.99	20	20
HIS 101	U.S. History	60	4.00	60	0

Course	DESCRIPTION Medical Assistant	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
AP 114	Anatomy and Physiology I	40	2.66	40	0
AP 115	Anatomy and Physiology II	40	2.66	40	0
MT 110	Medical Terminology	60	4.00	60	0
PH 101	Introduction to Pharmacology	20	1.33	20	0
MO 110	Medical Office Administration	40	2.33	30	10
COD 101	Introduction to Medical Insurance/Coding	20	0.99	10	10
PC 101	Patient Communication	20	0.99	10	10
MO 120	Medical Principles and Foundations	40	1.99	20	20
KB 101	Keyboarding	20	1.66	0	20
CP 110	Clinical Procedures I	40	1.66	10	30
CP 120	Clinical Procedures II	40	1.66	10	30
CP 130	Clinical Procedures III	40	0.83	10	30
LP 110	Laboratory Procedures I	20	0.99	15	5

LP 120	Laboratory Procedures II	40	1.66	10	30
CP 140	Clinical Procedures IV	40	1.66	10	30
CP 150	Clinical Procedures V	40	1.66	10	30
CS 103	Career Development	40	1.66	10	30
EX 111	Externship	160	3.55	0	160

Course	DESCRIPTION Medical Assistant AAS Electives	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
PHB 201	Phlebotomy	40	2.66	40	0
EKG 201	Electrocardiography	60	4.00	60	0
NPC 114	NCCT Preparation Course	60	4.00	60	0
	PROGRAM TOTALS	1240		759	481

MEDICAL ASSISTANT Associate of Applied Science

DAY/EVENING SCHEDULE – MONDAY - FRIDAY

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Anatomy and Physiology I	4	40	Seni. Credit	2
Anatomy and Physiology I	4	40	5.32	2
		-10		2
MODULE 2				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Medical Terminology	4	60	5.33	3
Introduction to Pharmacology	4	20		1
MODULE 3				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Medical Office Administration	4	40	-	2
Introduction to Medical Insurance/Coding	4	20	4.31	1
Patient Communication	4	20		1
MODULE 4				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Medical Principles and Foundations	4	40		2
Keyboarding	4	40	3.65	2
			1	
MODULE 5 Subject Areas	Hours Por Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Clinical Procedures I	Hours Per Day 4	40	Seni. Credit	2
Clinical Procedures II	4	40	3.32	2
	4	40		2
MODULE 6				1
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Clinical Procedures III	4	20	_	1
Laboratory Procedures I	4	40	3.48	2
Laboratory Procedures II	4	20		1
MODULE 7				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Clinical Procedures IV	4	40	3.32	2
Clinical Procedures V	4	40	0.01	2
MODULE 8			1	
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Career Development	4	40	5.21	2
Externship	8	160	5.21	4
MODULE 9/10				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Phlebotomy	4	40	6.66	2
Electrocardiography	4	60	0.00	3
NCCT Preparation Course	4	60	4.00	3

MODULE 11				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
U.S. History	4	60	5.15	3
MS Word/Business Ethics	4	20	5.15	1

MODULE 12

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Introduction to Psychology	4	60	F 4F	3
MS PowerPoint/Business Ethics	4	20	5.15	1

MODULE 13

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Earth Science	4	60	4.07	3
MS Excel I/Business Ethics	4	20	4.87	1

MODULE 14

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
College Math	4	60	4.07	3
MS Excel II/Business Ethics	4	20	4.87	1

HEALTH INFORMATION TECHNICIAN Associate of Applied Science

The objective of this program has been designed to prepare students for entry-level employment in a medical front office, hospital office setting, or medical insurance company. Typical job titles for Health Information Technicians entering the field would be: health information technician, medical secretary, medical insurance biller, and medical receptionist. The content of the program provides the student with specialized training in industry-current medical administrative procedures. Instruction in medical terminology, anatomy and physiology, processing insurance forms, scheduling appointments, collections, medical bookkeeping, and other critical patient services will be emphasized. Students will be able to have specialized hands-on training on processing equipment. This instruction ranges from introductory keyboarding and electronic calculating to current word processing skills in MS Word for Windows. At the completion of the classroom instruction, the student will receive supervised job-related skills on externship at a selected insurance company, hospital or medical office setting to complete a well-rounded education.

Successful completion of this course will lead an Associate of Applied Science Degree.

54 weeks of instruction - 20 hours per week	Monday through Friday 4 hours per day
4 weeks of Externship (Estimated 40 hours per week) 2 weeks of Externship (Estimated 20 hours per week)	Monday through Friday HIT extern 8 hours per day Clinical 4 hours per day
60 Total Program - Weeks	
1260 Clock Hours / 64 Semester Credit Hours	

DAY/EVENING PROGRAM SCHEDULE

Course	DESCRIPTION General Education	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
BE 101	Business Ethics	40	2.66	40	0
PSY 103	Introduction to Psychology	60	4.00	60	0
SCI 101	Earth Science	60	3.72	52	8
MTH 101	College Math	60	3.72	52	8
CPA 101	Business Computer Applications	40	1.99	20	20
HIS 101	U.S. History	60	4.00	60	0

Course	DESCRIPTION Health Information Technician	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
AP 114	Anatomy and Physiology I	40	2.66	40	0
AP 115	Anatomy and Physiology II	40	2.66	40	0
MT 110	Medical Terminology	60	4.00	60	0
PH 101	Introduction to Pharmacology	20	1.33	20	0
MO 110	Medical Office Administration	40	2.66	40	0
COD 101	Introduction to Medical Insurance/Coding	40	1.66	10	30
PC 101	Patient Communication	20	0.99	10	10
MO 120	Medical Principles and Foundations	40	2.66	40	0
KB 101	Keyboarding	20	0.66	0	20
MO 130	Collections & Reimbursement Procedures	40	2.33	30	10

EX 114	Externship for Coding	40	0.88	0	40
NPC 116	NCCT Preparation Course (NCICS)	80	3.99	40	40
NPC 115	NCCT Preparation Course (NCMOA)	60	3.32	40	20
Course	DESCRIPTION Associate of Applied Science	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
EX 111	Externship for HIT	160	3.55	0	160
CS 103	Career Development	40	1.99	20	20
COD 120	Medical Coding II	40	1.66	10	30
EHR 120	Electronic Health Records II	40	1.66	10	30
COD 110	ICD-10-CM Coding	40	1.99	20	20
EHR 110	Electronic Health Records	40	1.99	20	20
MO 140	Introduction to Medical Bookkeeping & HIT	40	2.33	30	10

PROGRAM TOTALS

HEALTH INFORMATION TECHNICIAN

ASSOCIATE OF APPLIED SCIENCE

DAY/EVENING SCHEDULE – MONDAY – FRIDAY

MODULE 1

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Anatomy and Physiology I	4	40	5.32	2
Anatomy and Physiology II	4	40		2

MODULE 2

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Medical Terminology	4	60	5.33	3
Introduction to Pharmacology	4	20		1

MODULE 3

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Medical Office Administration	4	40		2
Introduction to Medical Insurance/Coding	4	40	4.33	2
Patient Communication	4	20		1

MODULE 4

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Patient Communication	4	20	4.31	1
Medical Principles and Foundations	4	40		2
Keyboarding	4	20		1

MODULE 5

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Introduction to Medical Bookkeeping & HIT	4	40	4.66	2
Collections & Reimbursement Procedures	4	40	4.66	2

MODULE 6

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Electronic Health Records	4	40	3.98	2
ICD-10-CM Coding	4	40		2

MODULE 7

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Electronic Health Records II	4	40	3.32	2
Medical Coding II	4	40		2

MODULE 8

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
NCCT Preparation Course (NCMOA)	4	60	4.20	3
Externship for Coding	4	40		2

MODULE 9

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
NCCT Preparation Course (NCICS)	4	80	3.99	4

MODULE 10				
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Externship for HIT	8	160	5.54	4
Career Development	4	40		2

MODULE 11

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
U.S. History	4	60	5.15	3
MS Word/Business Ethics	4	20		1

MODULE 12

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Introduction to Psychology	4	60	F 1F	3
MS PowerPoint/Business Ethics	4	20	5.15	1

MODULE 13

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Earth Science	4	60	4.07	3
MS Excel I/Business Ethics	4	20	4.87	1

MODULE 14

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
College Math	4	60	4.07	3
MS Excel II/Business Ethics	4	20	4.87	1

ASSOCIATE OF SCIENCE IN CRIMINAL JUSTICE

The objective of the AS Criminal Justice program is designed to prepare graduates for entry into state, local, or federal law enforcement, corrections, or private security. Students will study the U.S. Constitution, American court systems, Federal and California state laws, and past and current criminal trends. Students will be prepared to properly articulate, format and complete various types of reports and professional communication. Prior to graduation, students will be introduced to the application process for various local, state, and federal agencies.

Students will be required to maintain personal physical fitness throughout the program and pass a standardized physical assessment prior to graduation. Upon completion of all theory classes, students will be required to complete a practical capstone, concentrating on real-world scenarios. Students will train with various equipment, to include simulated firearms and dry-fire range, forensic testing kits (i.e., fingerprinting, blood splatter, bullet trajectory, gun powder analysis), and officer duty belt with handcuffs and attachments.

The Associate of Science is available in four different emphasis areas. Students are required to choose one emphasis path in either Crime Scene Investigations, Corrections, Homeland Security, or Corporate Security.

Successful completion of this course will lead to an Associate of Science.

DAY/EVENING PROGRAM SCHEDULE

36 weeks of instruction - 20 hours per week	Monday through Friday 4 hours per day
61 Total Program - Weeks	
1200 Clock Hours / 71 Semester Credit Hours	

Course	DESCRIPTION General Education	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
PSY 103	Introduction to Psychology	60	4.00	60	0
SCI 101	Earth Science	60	3.72	52	8
MTH 101	College Math	60	3.72	52	8
CPA 101	Business Computer Applications	40	1.99	20	20
HIS 101	U.S. History	60	4.00	60	0
	SECTION TOTALS	280	17.43	244	36
Course	DESCRIPTION Criminal Justice & Public Safety	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
LS 101	Introduction to Criminal Justice	40	2.66	40	0
LS 110	Criminal Law	40	2.66	40	0
LS 120	Criminal Procedure and the Constitution	40	2.66	40	0
LS 130	Deviance & Violence	40	1.33	20	20
LS 140	Criminal Evidence	40	2.33	40	0
LS 150	Gangs and Narcotics	40	1.99	40	0
LS 160	American Criminal Courts	40	1.99	40	0
ENG 101	Writing I	40	1.99	10	30
LS 201	Communication & Report Writing	40	2.66	20	20
LS 203	Public Safety Hiring Process	40	2.66	20	20
CS 108	Career Development	40	3.99	20	20
PHYS 101	Physical Fitness for Public Safety	40	1.66	10	30

	DESCRIPTION		Som Cradit	Locture	Lah
	SECTION TOTALS	720	40.88	510	210
STP 200	Strategic Operations (STOPS) Capstone	80	2.66	20	60
CPS 101	Introduction to Corporate Security	40	2.66	40	0
CT 101	Principles of Investigation	40	2.66	40	0
CO 101	Introduction to Corrections	40	2.66	40	0
HLS 101	Introduction to Homeland Security & Terrorism	40	1.66	40	0

Course	DESCRIPTION Emphasis in Homeland Security	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
HLS 102	National Security Law	40	2.66	40	0
HLS 201	Homeland Security Intelligence	40	2.66	40	0
HLS 202	Confronting Terrorism & Intelligence Management	40	2.66	40	0
HLS 300	Religious Extremism and Terrorism	40	2.66	40	0
CPS 300	Private Sector Securities	40	2.66	40	0

Course	DESCRIPTION Emphasis in Corrections	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
CO 102	Juvenile Justice Delinquency	40	2.66	40	0
CO 201	Inmate Supervision	40	2.66	40	0
CO 202	Probation and Parole	40	2.66	40	0
CO 203	Sex Offenders	40	2.66	40	0
CI 203	Domestic Violence	40	2.66	40	0

Course	DESCRIPTION Emphasis in Crime Scene Investigations	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
CI 102	Search and Seizure	40	2.66	40	0
CI 201	Crime Scene Documentation	40	2.66	40	0
CI 202	Crime Scene Processing	40	2.66	40	0
CI 203	Domestic Violence	40	2.66	40	0
CO 203	Sex Offenders	40	2.66	40	0

Course	DESCRIPTION Emphasis in Corporate Security	Clock Hours	Sem. Credit Hours	Lecture Hours	Lab Hours
CPS 102	Criminal Investigations & Loss Prevention	40	2.66	40	0
CPS 201	Resolving Conflict	40	2.66	40	0
CPS 202	Risk & Threat Management	40	2.66	40	0
CPS 300	Private Sector Securities	40	2.66	40	0
HLS 300	Religious Extremism and Terrorism	40	2.66	40	0
	PROGRAM TOTAL	1200	71.61	954	246

ASSOCIATE OF SCIENCE IN CRIMINAL JUSTICE

DAY/EVENING SCHEDULE – MONDAY – FRIDAY

MODULE 1							
Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks			
Introduction to Criminal Justice	4	40	F 22	2			
Criminal Law	4	40	5.32	2			

MODULE 2

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Criminal Procedure and the Constitution	4	40	4.65	2
Deviance & Violence	4	40	4.65	2

MODULE 3

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Criminal Evidence	4	40	5.32	2
Gangs and Narcotics	4	40		2

MODULE 4

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
American Criminal Courts	4	40	4.65	2
Communication & Report Writing	4	40		2

MODULE 5

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Public Safety Hiring Process	4	40	3.98	2
Career Development	4	40		2

MODULE 6

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Introduction to Homeland Security & Terrorism	4	40	5.32	2
Introduction to Corrections	4	40		2

MODULE 7

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Principles of Investigation	4	40	5.32	2
Introduction to Corporate Security	4	40		2

MODULE 8

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Physical Fitness for Public Safety	4	40	3.32	2
Writing I	4	40		2

MODULE 9

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Strategic Operations (STOPS) Capstone	4	80	3.99	4

MODULE 10 (Emphasis in Crime Scene Investigations)

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Search and Seizure	4	40	5.32	2
Crime Scene Documentation	4	40		2

MODULE 11 (Emphasis in Crime Scene Investigations/ Emphasis in Corrections)

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Domestic Violence	4	40	3.32	2
Sex Offenders	4	40		2

MODULE 12 (Emphasis in Crime Scene Investigations)

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Crime Scene Processing	4	40	2.66	2

MODULE 13

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
U.S. History	4	60	5.15	3
MS Word/Business Ethics	4	20		1

MODULE 14

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Introduction to Psychology	4	60	5.15	3
MS PowerPoint/Business Ethics	4	20		1

MODULE 15

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
Earth Science	4	60	4.87	3
MS Excel I/Business Ethics	4	20		1

MODULE 16

Subject Areas	Hours Per Day	Total Hours	Sem. Credit	Total Weeks
College Math	4	60	4.87	3
MS Excel II/Business Ethics	4	20		1

Private Security Academy Certificate				
Series	Description			
Part 1	Weapons of Mass Destruction, Powers to Arrest, Live Scan, State Forms, Test, and Diploma/Certificate of Completion			
Part 2	To be completed within 30 days of receiving Guard Card. Public relations, Observation and Documentation, Communications, Liability, and Legal Aspects.			
Part 3	To be completed within six months of receiving your guard card. Difficult people, work place violence, officer survival, handcuffing, incident scene, courtroom testimony, arrest/search, report writing.			
BSIS Firearms	Testing, state forms, live scan, range qualification and training, ammunition, range fees.			
Firearms Qualifications	Qualifications must be completed quarterly/twice per year along with firearms refresher. Ammunition, written test, range qualifications and fees, ammunition.			
BSIS Baton	PR/24, expandable baton, straight stick. State card and certificate issued.			
BSIS Tear Gas	Case, permit, canister of tear gas, card, and certificate.			
Taser	Case, permit, two live rounds, certificate, and card.			
Basic Life Support	American Heart Association. AED training included along with, test, cards, and student manual.			
TECC	Tactical Emergency Casualty Care for law enforcement and first responders			

General Education Course Descriptions

BE 101 Business Ethics

This course will focus on ethical issues and scenarios that relate directly to employees and their work environment. Students will develop a clearer sense of how, as a future employee, their corporate code of ethics will relate to operational decisions made daily. Focus will be placed on organizational ethics, corporate social responsibility, corporate governance, role of government, blowing the whistle, and ethics and technology.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Define ethics, business ethics, organizational ethics, and know the difference between the three.
- 2. Identify ethical challenges in an organization.
- 3. Understand the role of HR in an organization as it relates to a corporate code of ethics.
- 4. Describe and explain Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and the five driving forces behind it.
- 5. Explain the term corporate governance.
- 6. Identify the five key pieces of U.S. legislation regulating illegal conduct within organizations.
- 7. Explain the term 'whistle-blower' and the difference between internal and external whistle blowing.
- 8. Understand the different motivations of whistle blowers and identify the consequences of ignoring their concerns.
- 9. Evaluate the ethical consequences of recent technological advances.
- 10. Explain the difference between the Employer versus the Employee view of privacy at work.
- 11. Apply knowledge of Business Ethics to daily decisions made in the work environment.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on Business Ethics.

CPA 101 Business Computer Applications

This course provides an overview of current software packages used in the business environment. Students will learn to create, edit, print, and save effective documents using word processing software as well as the basics of creating a graphical slide show using presentation software. Instruction will include using software to create and edit spreadsheets with embedded charts and graphs. Real world application projects will test students' skills in these applications.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Create/save/edit basic MSWord documents.
- 2. Format text in document including font size/style/color, and headings.
- 3. Format document including margins, paragraph alignment, tabs/indents, page breaks, and bullets.
- 4. Create/save/edit presentations in PowerPoint.
- 5. Insert graphics into a PowerPoint presentation.
- 6. Insert notes into a PowerPoint presentation.
- 7. Print PowerPoint presentation.
- 8. Create/save/edit basic worksheets in MS Excel.
- 9. Use AutoSum, AVG, MIN, and MAX formulas to perform calculations.
- 10. Create multiple worksheet workbooks in MS Excel.
- 11. Insert Charts/Graphs into worksheets.
- 12. Format and organize worksheets.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Produce a written paper on a current Business Ethics topic using MS Word.
- 2. Produce and demonstrate a PowerPoint presentation on a Psychology topic.

- 3. Produce an Excel spreadsheet that analyzes extreme weather pattern data.
- 4. Create a workbook that includes multiple worksheets and recreate a graph from given data.

HIS 101 U.S. History

This course presents a general overview of the history of the United States from pre-colonial times through the Reconstruction Era. It explores the cultural, political, geographical, economical, and technological changes that have shaped the United States as a nation. Through a chronological study of major events, people, and turning points in U.S. history, this course also provides tools for the critical thinking skills needed to interpret historical methods, points of view, and the meanings of events in historical contexts.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Identify major events and turning points in U.S. history.
- 2. Describe the changes and conflicts that occurred following European contact with the Americas.
- 3. Discover the contributions of influential cultures and individuals on the American way of life.
- 4. Associate the causes, effects, and significance of the American Revolution with moments of historical importance before and after the war.
- 5. Outline key themes in the United States Constitution.
- 6. Interpret the causes, conduct, and legacy of the American Civil War.
- 7. Demonstrate an understanding of the lasting legacies of U.S. slavery.
- 8. Chart how the growth of industry changed the United States.
- 9. Give examples of the successes and failures of Reconstruction.
- 10. Relate contemporary issues and problems to their respective histories.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on U.S. History.

MTH 101 College Math

This course covers basic mathematical topics in college math through everyday applications. The course first reviews fundamental math concepts such as whole numbers, fractions and mixed numbers, and decimals and then applies them to ratio, rate, proportion, and percent problems. Students will also be introduced to basic algebra concepts including simplifying, factoring, combining, and evaluating algebraic expressions.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Employ the scientific method.
- 2. Solve equations involving fractions and mixed numbers.
- 3. Solve ratio, rate, proportion, and percent word problems.
- 4. Solve single variable algebraic equations.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on college math.

PSY 103 Introduction to Psychology

This course provides broad coverage of the field of psychology, introducing the basic concepts, theories, and applications that constitute the discipline. Topics covered include: sensation and perception, sleep and dreams, classical and operant conditioning, foundations of memory, motivation and emotion, nature and nurture, and personality.

- 1. Define the science of psychology.
- 2. Describe the subfields of psychology.

- 3. Explain the roots of psychology.
- 4. Discuss today's perspectives on psychology.
- 5. Identify key issues and controversies in psychology.
- 6. Define the scientific method and list the steps involved.
- 7. Explain the difference between Descriptive, Experimental, and Psychological Research.
- 8. Explain the major ethical issues in psychological research.
- 9. Explain the five senses and how they relate to psychology.
- 10. Explain the gestalt laws of organization.
- 11. Differentiate the explanations of dreaming.
- 12. Describe the basics of classical conditioning.
- 13. Describe the basics of operant conditioning.
- 14. Explain the difference between latent and observational learning.
- 15. Define sensory memory, short-term memory, and long-term memory.
- 16. Explain the processes of recall and forgetting.
- 17. Explain the five approaches to motivation.
- 18. Apply Maslow's hierarchy of needs to motivation.
- 19. Compare and contrast the influence of nature versus nurture.
- 20. Explain Freud's psychoanalytic theory.

Pass a comprehensive exam on Psychology.

SCI 101 Earth Science

This course introduces fundamental scientific concepts in Earth Science. Students will explore a broad spectrum of earth science topics from Earth's position in the solar system to the delicate ecological systems on Earth's surface. Topics covered include: the scientific method, motions of earth, earth materials, plate tectonics, earthquakes, weathering, erosion, winds, atmosphere, weather, climate, oceans, and ecology and the environment.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Understand the life cycle of a star.
- 2. Understand the life cycle of a galaxy.
- 3. Explain the differences between a planet, moon, and small solar system bodies.
- 4. Know the planets in the Solar System.
- 5. Describe the stages of the origin of the solar system.
- 6. Describe the motions of the Earth.
- 7. Describe the phases of the Moon.
- 8. Know the difference between a sun and a moon eclipse.
- 9. Describe the three different types of rocks.
- 10. Describe the layers of the Earth.
- 11. Define plate tectonics.
- 12. Describe the five processes that shape the Earth's surface.
- 13. Describe the composition of the atmosphere.
- 14. Describe evaporation, condensation, and air saturation.
- 15. Know the major weather producers.
- 16. Explain the major climate groups.
- 17. Describe the different types of water on Earth's surface.
- 18. Explain the hydrologic cycle.
- 19. Explain the movement of seawater.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on Earth Science.

Technology Course Descriptions

APL 205 CompTIA Certification Review

This course builds upon skills gained in the Advanced Training IST diploma program. Students will be given the opportunity to sit for the CompTIA certifications through testing performed at our facility. The course therefore explores the essential parts of the personal computer, the Windows operating system, small business networks, and mobile devices. Program elements include hardware and operating system deployment, maintenance, and repair. Students will learn standardized troubleshooting methods which will allow them to resolve system issues quickly and efficiently. Methodologies related to data preservation and destruction will be presented. Students will learn how proper personal interaction will lead to satisfied clients.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Understand Windows operating system, small business networks, and mobile devices
- 2. Demonstrate knowledge of program elements for hardware and operating systems.
- 3. Define troubleshooting methods for advanced computer management.

Course Competencies:

Pass comprehensive exam based on CompTia A+ or N+ or Sec+ certification standards.

CT 100 Web Technologies & Database Management

This course will focus on internet fundamentals, web design, using hand-coded Hypertext Markup Language (HTML), web editors, PHP, and MySQL. Emphasis is also placed on creating and managing databases using PHP and MySQL

Course Objectives:

- 1. Create basic web pages using HTML, PHP, and MySQL.
- 2. Create and manage a database using PHP and MySQL

Course Competencies:

- 1. Create a personal web page using HTML, PHP, and MySQL.
- 2. Pass a comprehensive exam on database management.

CT 102 Network Operations

The object of this course is to explain and demonstrate modern network operations. Today's networks are expected to ensure 24/7 availability of network resources. Network Operations teaches students to monitor netflow and to adjust for best network performance. Students learn how to create and manage tickets, provide back end maintenance, and provision network services on core equipment. Students learn the essentials of network monitoring, power monitoring and wireless survey tools. Throughout the course, the importance of ongoing network hardening is emphasized.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Demonstrate knowledge of basic network operations with respect to resources.
- 2. Ability to configure and maintain trouble ticket system.
- 3. Demonstrate troubleshooting techniques to maintain netflow.

Course Competencies:

1. Pass a comprehensive exam based on Network Operations.

CT 105 Java Programming

This course will teach the significance of object-oriented programming. Students will learn the keywords and constructs of the Java programming language and the steps required to create simple Java technology programs.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Demonstrate knowledge of Java technology, the Java programming language, and the product life cycle
- 2. Use various Java programming language constructs to create several Java technology applications
- 3. Use decision and looping constructs and methods to dictate program flow
- 4. Implement intermediate Java technology programming and object-oriented (OO) concepts in Java technology programs.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Pass a comprehensive exam based on Java Programming
 - 2. Present final project application. Final project will include use of database access, Hypertext Transfer Protocol (HTTP) gets and puts and class inheritance.

CT 110 Fundamentals of Cybersecurity

This course will provide learners with principles of data and technology that frame and define cybersecurity. Students will gain insight into the importance of cybersecurity and the integral role of cybersecurity personnel. Focus is on cybersecurity principles, security architecture, risk management, attacks, incidents, and information technology (IT) and information security (IS) technologies.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Demonstrate knowledge of basic cybersecurity technology
- 2. Assess the current security landscape, including the nature of the threat, the general status of common vulnerabilities, and the likely consequences of security failures
- 3. Appraise the interrelationships among elements that comprise a modern security system, including hardware, software, policies, and people

Course Competencies:

1. Pass a comprehensive exam based on Cybersecurity principals

CT 115 Computer Hardware

This course explores the essential parts of a computer with focus on the motherboard, the central processing unit (CPU), and the Basic Input/Output System (BIOS). Students will learn assembly, updating, and troubleshooting of these components in laboratory projects. Mass data storage and printing systems will also be discussed.

Course Objectives:

Demonstrate knowledge of and ability to install and troubleshoot computer hardware.

Course Competencies:

Install and troubleshoot the following computer hardware: motherboard; CPU; memory; hard disks; floppy disks; CD/DVD drives and miscellaneous expansion cards, in class laboratory exam.

CT 116 Computer Operating Systems (Windows)

This course covers file systems, installation and setup, system management, and networking with Windows Operating System (OS). Focus is on hard disk preparation, memory management, the command prompt, disk management, utilities, and troubleshooting basic networking issues.

Install, configure, and troubleshoot Windows operating systems.

Course Competencies:

Install, configure, and troubleshoot Windows operating systems in class laboratory exam.

CT 117 Computer Networks

This course provides a closer examination of basic computer networking as well as network operation and the practical application of networks. Topics covered include: network structure and models, cabling, protocols, and remote connectivity. Students will also practice installing and administering a home and small business network.

Course Objectives:

Install, configure, and troubleshoot Windows Networks.

Course Competencies:

Install, configure, and troubleshoot a Windows Network in class laboratory exam.

CT 120 Linux

This course is an introduction to Linux operating systems and applications. Topics discussed are: open source software, Linux distributions, preparing for Linux, installing Linux, configuring Linux, live disks, Linux file systems, installing software, and security. Students will learn to install Linux as a domain controller on a Windows network and as a standard (LAMP) server.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Install, configure, and troubleshoot Linux operating systems and networks
- 2. Integrate Linux into a Windows network
- 3. Install, configure, and troubleshoot a standard web server using Linux and Apache.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Install, configure, and troubleshoot a Linux operating system in class laboratory exam.
- 2. Integrate Linux into a Windows network in class laboratory exam.
- 3. Install, configure, and troubleshoot a standard web server using Linux and Apache in class laboratory exam.

CT 150 Basic Fiber Optics

The Basic Fiber Optics Installation Technology course is an introduction to fiber optics. It is designed to provide students with knowledge of the fundamentals of light wave technology, basic optical theory, optical fiber technology, components & connectors, the splicing process, fiber optics applications, optical signals, system performance measurements and review Fiber Optics Safety Plan and proper fiber optic lab safety.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Knowledge of basic optical theory and fiber optic fundamentals.
- 2. Ability to terminate fiber optic cables using epoxy/polish connectors.
- 3. Ability to terminate fiber optic cable using cleave-and-crimp connectors.
- 4. Understand OFSTP-14 Multimode (MM) and OFSTP-7 Singlemode (SM) cable testing.
- 5. Demonstrate knowledge of safety procedures.

- 1. Terminate SM and MM fiber optic cable using epoxy/polish connector.
- 2. Terminate SM and MM fiber optic cable using cleave-and-crimp connector.
- 3. Show proper cleaning, polishing, and inspection techniques.

- 4. Test cable using OFSTP-14 and OFSTP-7 Method B.
- 5. Pass comprehensive exam based on the Fiber Optics Association's (FOA) Certified Fiber Optics Technician (CFOT) certification standards.

CS 106 Career Development

This course offers an introduction to successful interviewing and resume development techniques. In addition, it provides information on effective networking and seeking out the appropriate job. Instruction is provided on correct workplace habits, professionalism, and maintaining a positive attitude.

Course Objectives:

1. Demonstrate effective interviewing techniques.

Create a professional resume.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Complete a mock interview with Career Advisor.
- 2. Develop a professional resume with Career Advisor and submit to three job postings.

CPCT 110 Basic Premises Cabling (CPCT)

The Basic Premise Cabling Installation Technology course is an introduction indoor cabling that includes ethernet, fiber optics and wireless (WiFi). It is designed to provide students with knowledge of the fundamentals of network and cable installation of wires to punch down blocks, jacks, plugs, connectors and wireless access points to TIA/EIA 568 standards. It also provides knowledge of lightwave technology, basic optical theory, optical fiber technology, components & connectors, the splicing process, fiber optics applications, optical signals, system performance measurements and proper lab safety.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Familiarization with technology for communications and cabling.
- 2. Define the difference in cabling standards and codes for installation.
- 3. Understand the copper components used for cabling installation.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Demonstrate identification and handling of cable preparation, pulling, and termination.
- 2. Pass a comprehensive exam on FOA CPCT standards.

CPCT 202 Certified Premises Cabling (CPCT)

This course will focus on focus on understanding the technology and processes involved in fiber, copper and wireless in structured cabling as well as the components and how they are used to build premises network cabling systems properly. Topics include: Premises Wiring; Wiring Installation Practices; Wireless; Cabling for wireless. Hands-on Labs include: Wiring (cable, punchdowns, jacks and plugs) and fiber optics (premises cabling, termination and testing).

Course Objectives:

- 1. Understanding of how telephone, CCTV, CATV, and computer networks use cabling to communicate.
- 2. Know industry standards for the cabling used for telephone, CaTV, CCTV and LAN networks in a typical commercial installation.
- 3. Understand the basics of fiber optic technology, components and applications as it pertains to CPCT.
- 4. Know TIA-568 test requirements, procedures, specifications and standards as pertain to CPCT.
- 5. Understand standard architectures and components used for cabling installations.

- 1. Terminate Cat3/Cat5/66 and 110 blocks as well as COAX cables.
- 2. Test UTP for proper installation and termination using Wiremapper, Network Verification, Certification Tester, and Ohmeter.
- 3. Terminate fiber optic cable using 3M hot melt, anaerobic, pre-polished, and epoxy polish methods.
- 4. Pass comprehensive exam based on FOA's CFOS/T certification standards.

CSWS 103 Client-Side Web Scripting

This course introduces Dynamic HTML (DHTML) to create client-side web scripting interfaces. Students will be exposed to JavaScript, JQuery, AJAX, Visual Basic .NET (VB.NET) in order to create an interactive web interface.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Identify the function of client-side web scripting.
- 2. Recognize the various scripting languages presented in class.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Pass a comprehensive exam on client-side web scripting.
- 2. Create a client-side web-based interface founded on theory discussed in lecture.

ET 101 Basic Electronics

This course will cover all aspects of basic electronics, starting with common electronic units, components, and circuits. Students will learn about semiconductor fundamentals, diodes, transistors, amplifier, binary, octal, hexadecimal notation, displays, testing, and basic soldering technique.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Demonstrate knowledge of basic electronics theory such as Ohm's Law and Kirchhoff's Laws.
- 2. Demonstrate knowledge of basic electronics devices such as resistors, inductors, capacitors, diodes, transistors, and other solid-state devices.
- 3. Demonstrate knowledge of basic DC and AC electronic circuits.

Course Competencies:

1. Pass a comprehensive exam based on CET certification standards.

Complete Oscilloscope Reading Laboratory.

ET 201 Electronics

This course will cover all aspects of basic electronics, starting with common electronic units, components, and circuits. Students will learn about semiconductor fundamentals, diodes, transistors, amplifier, binary, octal, hexadecimal notation, displays, testing, and basic soldering technique.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Demonstrate knowledge of basic electronics theory such as Ohm's Law and Kirchhoff's Laws.
- 2. Demonstrate knowledge of basic electronics devices such as resistors, inductors, capacitors, diodes, transistors, and other solid-state devices.
- 3. Demonstrate knowledge of basic DC and AC electronic circuits.
- 4. Demonstrate knowledge of basic electronics theory such as Ohm's Law and Kirchhoff's Laws.
- 5. Demonstrate knowledge of basic electronics devices such as resistors, inductors, capacitors, diodes, transistors, and other solid-state devices.
- 6. Demonstrate knowledge of basic DC and AC electronic circuits.

- 1. Pass a comprehensive exam based on Certified Electronics Technician (CET) certification standards.
- 2. Complete Oscilloscope Reading Laboratory.

FCC 150 FCC GROL

This course will begin with Elements 1 & 3, which covers regulations, procedures, equipment, electrical math, satellite, RADAR, technology, modulation, transmitters, and safety.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Develop a knowledge of basic radio law and operating practice for maritime radios.
- 2. Understand the electronic fundamentals and techniques required to adjust, repair, and maintain radio transmitters and receivers.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Pass a comprehensive exam on FCC Element 1 standards.
- 2. Pass a comprehensive exam on FCC Element 3 standards.

FCC 151 FCC GROL/RADAR

This course will begin with Elements 1 & 3 which cover regulations, procedures, equipment, electrical math, satellite, RADAR, technology, modulation, transmitters, and safety. The course will cover the FCC Element 8 endorsement, which covers RADAR principles, systems, installation, maintenance, and repairs.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Develop a knowledge of basic radio law and operating practice for maritime radios.
- 2. Understand the electronic fundamentals and techniques required to adjust, repair, and maintain radio transmitters and receivers.
- 3. Develop knowledge of specialized theory and practice applicable to the proper installation, servicing, and maintenance of ship radar equipment in general use for marine navigation purposes.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Pass a comprehensive exam on FCC Element 1 standards.
- 2. Pass a comprehensive exam on FCC Element 3 standards.
- 3. Pass a comprehensive exam on FCC Element 8 standards.

FFP 103 Advanced - Fiber to the Premises (FTTx/CFOS-H)

Students in this course will learn why FTTx is being implemented today, including technical, marketing and financial justifications; the types of FTTx architectures being used, advantages and disadvantages of each and types of components required; Technical details of specialized FTTx components like splitters and wavelength-division multiplexers and requirements for cables, connectors, splices and hardware; the design and installation requirements particular to FTTx; and the specialized safety requirements of FTTx. Hands on labs examine testing and troubleshooting FTTx links.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Develop a knowledge of types of FTTx (FTTC (curb, also sometimes FTTN for node), FTTH (home), FTTP (premises), etc.
- 2. Identify advantages and disadvantages of each type of FTTx and FTTH architectures.
- 3. Understand the differences between PONs and traditional fiber networks.
- 4. Identify specialized safety requirements of FTTx.

- 1. Demonstrate the ability recognize requirements for design, installation, testing and troubleshooting FTTx links.
- 2. Pass a comprehensive exam on FOA CFOS/H standards.

FFP 104 Advanced Fiber Optics - Splicing (CFOS-S)

The Advanced Fiber Optics Module builds on concepts and theories learned in Basic Fiber Optics. It is designed to give students a closer look at cable splicing techniques like mechanical splicing, single fiber fusion splicing, multi-fiber ribbon splicing as well as intensive hands on learning with industry standard equipment. Also, students will learn to identify various splicing applications, various splice enclosures, splicing errors, and acceptable splices.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Develop a knowledge of fusion splicing methodology and preparation for single and ribbon fibers.
- 2. Understand the fundamentals of optical time domain reflectometers (OTDR) testing.
- 3. Identify specialized safety requirements of CFOS/S.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Demonstrate proper fiber preparation and fusion splicing.
- 2. Pass a comprehensive exam on FOA CFOS/S standards.

FFP 105 Advanced Fiber Optics - Testing (CFOS-T)

The Advanced Fiber Optics Module builds on concepts and theories learned in Basic Fiber Optics. It is designed to give students a closer look at cable types and splicing as well as intensive hands on learning with industry standard equipment. Also, students will be introduced to function and use of an optical time domain reflectometer (OTDR) as used for fiber optics testing

Course Objectives:

- 1. Understand how to visually Inspect of connectors and proper clean fibers.
- 2. Understand the testing fundamentals and techniques required for continuity, visual tracing, and visual fault location.
- 3. Explain methodology of power budgeting and the insertion of loss testing.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Demonstrate proper fiber optic testing utilizing the ODTR.
- 2. Pass a comprehensive exam on FOA CFOS/T standards.

FO 101 Basic Fiber Optics

The Basic Fiber Optics Installation Technology course is an introduction to fiber optics. It is designed to provide students with knowledge of the fundamentals of lightwave technology, basic optical theory, optical fiber technology, components & connectors, the splicing process, fiber optics applications, optical signals, system performance measurements and proper fiber optic lab safety.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Develop a knowledge of basic fiber optics.
- 2. Understand the fiber optic communication networks and applications.
- 3. Identify techniques used for proper fiber preparation and cable pulling.
- 4. Identify methods of fiber optic termination, splicing, and testing.

- 1. Demonstrate proper fiber and cable preparation.
- 2. Pass a comprehensive exam on FOA CFOT standards.

FO 201 Advanced Fiber Optics - Fiber to the Premises (FTTx/CFOS-H)

Students in this course will learn why FTTx is being implemented today, including technical, marketing and financial justifications; the types of FTTx architectures being used, advantages and disadvantages of each and types of components required; Technical details of specialized FTTx components like splitters and wavelength-division multiplexers and requirements for cables, connectors, splices and hardware; the design and installation requirements particular to FTTx; and the specialized safety requirements of FTTx. Hands on labs examine testing and troubleshooting FTTx links.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Know the characteristics of the following networks: Ethernet, FDDI, ESCON, SONET, PON and WDM PON.
- 2. Be able to work with FTTx components such as: Routers, modulators, tunable lasers, digital televisions, etc.
- 3. Understand the site requirements for FTTx installation.
- 4. Ability to use an OLTS.
- 5. Ability to comply with the OFSTP-14, NEC Article 770 and industry standards (EIA/TIA and ITU.)
- 6. Know the rules for fiber distribution, backbone cabling, and homerun or centralized fiber cabling.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Terminate SM fiber optic cable and test with OLTS.
- 2. Terminate MM fiber optic cable and test with OLTS.
- 3. Design a fiber optic link using FTTx components and test using all previously covered testing options (OLTS, OTDR, and VFL).
- 4. Pass comprehensive exam based on FOA's CFOS/H certification standards.

FO 202 Testing (CFOS-T)

This course is a continuation of Advanced Fiber Optics. Students will sharpen their fiber optics skills to become specialists in Fiber Optics Testing. Topics include: using power budgets to estimate loss when testing to verify results; modal effects on loss, using mode modifiers, standards requirements for mandrel wrap and source modal launch; using light source/power meter to make insertion loss tests, effects of launch cables, wavelength, 3 methods of setting "0 dB" reference; using OTDRs, using launch and/or receive cables, setting test parameters to get best results, bidirectional differences, ghosts, etc.; troubleshooting with VFL, source/PM, OTDR

Course Objectives:

- 1. Understand and perform Link Loss Budget.
- 2. Be able to comply with all fiber optics testing procedures and standards at an advanced level.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Terminate fiber optic cable using anaerobic and epoxy methods.
- 2. Test fiber optics link using manual OTDR settings.
- 3. Find faults and repair fiber optics link.
- 4. Pass comprehensive exam based on FOA's CFOS/T certification standards.

FO 203 Fiber to the Premises (FTTx)

Students in this course will learn why FTTx is being implemented today, including technical, marketing and financial justifications; the types of FTTx architectures being used, advantages and disadvantages of each and types of components required; Technical details of specialized FTTx components like splitters and wavelength-division multiplexers and requirements for cables, connectors, splices and hardware; the design and installation requirements particular to FTTx; and the specialized safety requirements of FTTx. Hands on labs examine testing and troubleshooting FTTx links.

- 1. Develop a knowledge of types of FTTx, FTTC, FTTH (home), FTTP (premises), etc.
- 2. Identify advantages and disadvantages of each type of FTTx and FTTH architectures.
- 3. Understand the differences between PONs and traditional fiber networks.
- 4. Identify specialized safety requirements of FTTx.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Demonstrate the ability recognize requirements for design, installation, testing and troubleshooting FTTx links.
- 2. Pass a comprehensive exam on FOA CFOS/H standards.

FO 206 Advanced Fiber Optics - Splicing (CFOS-S)

The Advanced Fiber Optics Module builds on concepts and theories learned in Basic Fiber Optics. It is designed to give students a closer look at cable types and splicing as well as intensive hands on learning with industry standard equipment. Also, students will be introduced to function and use of an optical time domain reflectometer (OTDR) as used for fiber optics testing.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Understand power loss testing on fiber optic cables using OFSTP14/OFSTP-7/FOTP-95/OFTP-171 Methods A, B, and C.
- 2. Understand fusion and mechanical splicing.
- 3. Advanced knowledge of fiber optic equipment including power loss test sets and OTDRs.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Terminate fiber optic cable
- 2. Perform two splices (fusion and mechanical) on fiber optic cable, test for loss, and analyze results.
- 3. Pass comprehensive exam based on FOA's CFOS/S certification standards.

MAD 110 Mobile Application Development

This course focuses on the creation of applications for use on mobile platforms. Students will focus on specific features and resources for application development on Android and iOS devices.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Identify various data, location, and memory requirements specific to mobile devices.
- 2. Recognize user interface designs used for mobile applications.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Pass a comprehensive exam on mobile application development.
- 2. Create a functioning application on an Android device.

MCSD 200 MCSD Certification Preparation Course

This course prepares students to take the Microsoft Certified Solutions Developer exam for web applications. Students will be prepared for the three-part Microsoft exam, to include ASP.NET MVC, Microsoft Azure, and either C# or HTML5 with JavaScript and CSS3.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Programming in HTML5 with JavaScript and CSS3
- 2. Programming in C#
- 3. Developing ASP.NET MVC Web Applications
- 4. Developing Microsoft Azure and Web Services

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam based on MCSD standards.

OOP 101 Object-Oriented Programming

20 Hours

Lecture 20 Lab 0

This course provides an overview of object-oriented programming languages and defines the standard purpose for each language discussed. The course will explain object-oriented programming concepts of inheritance, polymorphism, abstraction, and encapsulation.

Course Objectives:

Identify the object-oriented programming concepts discussed in class.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on object-oriented programming.

OOP 120C#/C++ Programming Language60 HoursLecture 20 Lab 40

This course provides a detailed look at the object-orientated programming C# (C-sharp) and C++ languages. Students will be prepared using industry best practices to create high quality C language code. The course will include project conception, design, implementation, and testing.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Familiarization of object-oriented concepts and syntax specific to the C languages.
- 2. Define terms related to C#/C++ programming, to include: Preprocessor Commands, Functions, Variables, Statements & Expressions, and Comments.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Pass a comprehensive exam on C#/C++ programming.
- 2. Create a program using the C language.

OOP 130 Java Programming

This course provides a hands-on experience with the object-orientated programming language of Java. Students will be prepared using industry best practices to create high quality Java code. The course will include project conception, design, implementation and testing.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Familiarization of object-oriented concepts and syntax specific to the Java language.
- 2. Define terms related to Java programming, to include: Object, Class, Inheritance, Interface, Package.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Pass a comprehensive exam on Java programming.
- 2. Create a program using the Java language.

PLDP 101 Core Programming Logic & Design Principles

This course introduces programming logic, control statements, and program flow. Students will be given the skills to understand programming structure; including sequence, selection, and repetition. The student will learn problem analysis and methods of algorithm application to solve the scenario.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Understand the fundamentals of programming logic.
- 2. Identify control statements and basic programming structure.
- 3. Recognize the steps necessary to create an algorithm capable of solving a given problem.

Course Competencies:

1. Pass a comprehensive exam on programming logic and design principles.

RAD 101 Radar

This course will review and prepare for testing in FCC Element 8, which covers RADAR principles, systems, installation, maintenance, and repairs.

Course Objectives:

Develop knowledge of specialized theory and practice applicable to the proper installation, servicing, and maintenance of ship radar equipment in general use for marine navigation purposes.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on FCC Element 8 standards.

SDC 200 Software Development Capstone Project

This course will build upon the fundamental concepts of software development learned throughout the program in a comprehensive capstone project. Students will use the skill sets acquired in the program to design and build a software solution to meet the given scenario. Students will be assigned to groups with milestones to meet throughout the course.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Understand the fundamentals of software development.
- 2. Identify the various hardware and software utilized by software programmers.
- 3. Recognize the difference between given programming interfaces/environments.
- 4. Enhance project management skills through deadlines and goals.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Meet milestone and goal markers.
- 2. Complete a scenario-based project to create a high-quality consumer ready IT solution.

SDPM 101 Intro to Software Development & Project Management

This course provides an overview to computer programming and software development. Students will be introduced to various computer operating systems, hardware, software and programming environments. An Emphasis is placed on planning, design, development, implementation, and testing of an application. Methods to utilize input–process–output (IPO) charts, pseudocode, and flowcharts with be introduced to assist with application development. Additionally, the course will discuss the health and safety of continuous computer usage and methods to lessen risk factors.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Understand the fundamentals of software development.
- 2. Identify the various hardware and software utilized by software programmers.
- 3. Recognize the difference between given programming interfaces/environments.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Pass a compressive exam on the basics of software development.
- 2. Complete a scenario-based exam on project management.

SSWA 104 Server-Side Web Application 80 Hours Lecture 40 Lab 40

This course introduces scripting for server-side web applications. The topics includes in this course are REST and SDK APIs, Microsoft Azure services, Ruby, PHP, and ASP.NET.

Course Objectives:

1. Identify the function of server-side web applications.

2. Recognize the various scripting languages presented in class.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Pass a comprehensive exam on server-side web applications.
- 2. Create a server-side web script based on theory discussed in lecture.

SQL 104 Understanding SQL and Databases 80 Hours Lecture 40 Lab 40

This course provides an understanding of Structured Query Language (SQL) and databases. The course will cover data management and database creation of a relational database management system (RDBMS). The basics of the SQL language will be discussed in order to access and retrieve data within the database. The implications of database security will be discussed.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Describe the organization of an RDBMS database.
- 2. Understand the fundamentals and commands for the Structured Query Language (SQL).

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on SQL and databases.

WEB 101 Web Development

This course introduces the student to web-based programming languages/scripts and focuses on internet fundamentals. Students will be able to create a web interface utilizing HTML/HTML5, CSS/CSS3, and PHP. The course will additionally introduce content management systems (CMS), especially WordPress.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Identify the scripting languages used in web design.
- 2. Recognize the correct syntax utilized in creating web pages.
- 3. Understand differences in web design techniques and streamline customer design with a CMS.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Pass a comprehensive exam on web development.
- 2. Create a website using techniques developed from the classroom lecture.

Criminal Justice Course Descriptions

LS 101 Introduction to Criminal Justice

This course provides an overview and introduction to criminal justice. Focus on the nature of crime, law and criminal justice, the police and law enforcement, the makeup of the courts, the adjudication system, the issues facing police, corrections.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Define the purpose of law and criminal justice.
- 2. Define the purpose of police and law enforcement.
- 3. Identify various crimes, their nature and category.
- 4. Describe the court and adjudication systems.
- 5. Explain currents issues facing police and corrections.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on criminal justice fundamentals.

This course will cover the study of the power of arrest, relevant federal and California constitutional provisions applicable to a criminal defendant. Students will be introduced to the structures of both the federal and state government including the court systems. Students will be introduced to various types of crimes, their element, and possible defenses. Relevant pre-trial procedures will be discussed. Theories for punishing criminal law violators will be explored and case briefing and IRAC concepts will be emphasized to students.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Explain the power of arrest, relevant federal and California constitutional provisions applicable to a criminal defendant.
- 2. Identify the structure of federal and state governments with focus on the court systems.
- 3. Explain various defenses and trial procedures for assigned crime types.
- 4. Discuss theories of criminal punishment

Course Competencies:

- 1. Pass a comprehensive exam on criminal law.
- 2. Produce case briefs for assigned criminal cases.

LS 120 Criminal Procedure and the Constitution

There will be a discussion of the Constitutional aspects of criminal procedure. The student will learn procedural aspects of the criminal system from arrest or summons through pretrial motions, trial, post-conviction, and appellate processes. A study of the Constitution at work in the court system with current applications.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Identify the procedural process from arrest/summons through pretrial motions, trial, postconviction, and appellate processes.
- 2. Describe Constitutional involvement during this process

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on criminal procedure.

LS 130 Deviance & Violence

This course explores research in the field of behavioral deviance. Students will analyze case studies of various types of psychologic deviances and behaviors, focusing on casual explanations, police investigative strategies, and research-based recommendations for preventing and responding to these violent acts.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Define behavioral deviance and can explain current research views on the topic.
- 2. Identify police strategies and recommendations for preventing and responding to violent acts discussed in the course.
- 3. Identify methods and strategies for responding to active shooter events.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on deviance and violence.

LS 140 Criminal Evidence

This course focuses on the nature of evidence as it relates to the pretrial and trial process, including: witnesses, hearsay, admissions and confessions, and the exclusionary rule. Emphasis is placed on specific types of evidence: circumstantial, documentary, physical, documentary and recorded.

- 1. Differentiate between the nature of evidence as it relates to pretrial and trial process.
- 2. Identify and define specific types of evidence discussed in the course.

Pass a comprehensive exam on criminal evidence.

LS 150 Gangs and Narcotics

This course presents an overview of the various classifications and characteristics of drugs and narcotics; as well as a comprehensive, contemporary, and interdisciplinary perspective on criminal sub-cultures in America.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Identify the classifications of various legal and illegal substances.
- 2. Recognize the effects and characteristics of different drug classes.
- 3. Demonstrate knowledge on criminal sub-cultures in America.
- 4. Define large gang presences throughout the U.S.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on gangs and narcotics.

LS 160 American Criminal Courts

This course presents an introduction to the structure of the court system (federal, state, and local) in the United States. Topics include descriptions and jurisdictions of each type of court, key court personnel, selection process and working environments, and the judge's unique role. Upon successful completion of this course, students will be able to chart both state and federal court structure and explain the roles of court personnel.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Define the U.S. court structure including the federal, state and local systems.
- 2. Recognize the authority of each type of court.
- 3. Define key aspects involved in the operation of each court type.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on America criminal courts.

ENG 101 Writing I

This course emphasizes integration of skills and strategies for academic reading and writing, including comprehension, vocabulary, fluency and development, and the conventions of academic texts. Students will be introduced to standard writing formats.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Identify skills and strategies for academic reading and writing.
- 2. Recognize vocabulary discussed in class.
- 3. Recognize various types of writing formats, to include APA and MLA.
- 4. Utilizing point of view, explain the difference between 1st and 3rd person.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Pass a comprehensive exam on basics of academic writing.
- 2. Produce a written paper on an assigned topic and following APA format.

LS 201 Communication & Report Writing

Students will learn and apply specialized techniques and approaches to interviews and interrogations as well as legal implications based on a variety of situations. Interviews and interrogation focuses on techniques and philosophies of conducting human communication in a criminal justice or legal

environment in which the goal is to obtain accurate information. Obtaining eyewitness information in an investigative environment is also discussed.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Identify and define interview and interrogation techniques and philosophies.
- 2. Recognize legal implications involved in criminal interviews and interrogations.
- 3. Explain the process of preparing a report in chronological order.
- 4. Define the information required to create a complete and accurate report.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Pass a comprehensive exam on communication and report writing.
- 2. Perform a criminal interview and produce a written report containing accurate information.

LS 203 Public Safety Hiring Process

This course provides an overview of employment in the criminal justice field. Topics include nature of the work, social media impacts, employment opportunities, median income, training, opportunity for advancement, employment outlook for ten different general classifications.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Identify various employment opportunities in the criminal justice field.
- 2. Identify necessary certificates required for various types of employment.
- 3. Recognize employment outlooks for ten general employment classifications.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Pass a comprehensive exam on public safety hiring process.
- 2. Prepare applications for various employment opportunities in the criminal justice field.

CS 108 Career Development

Instruction on interviewing techniques and on-the-job career development; i.e., negotiating salary and job performance reviews. Instruction in resume development. Exercises will include creating a personal resume for the student to use in his/her job search.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Demonstrate effective interviewing techniques.
- 2. Create a professional resume.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Complete a mock interview with Career Counselor.
- 2. Develop a professional resume with Career Counselor and submit to three job postings.

PHYS 101 Physical Fitness for Public Safety

Emphasizes total body fitness and focuses on aerobic activity and resistance training. Lecture and lab activities focus on cardiorespiratory endurance, muscular strength and endurance, safe activity principles, nutrition, and risk factors for disease.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Define basic forms of aerobic activity and resistance training.
- 2. Identify various types of endurance training.
- 3. Understand safe activity principles, nutrition, and risk factors for disease

Course Competencies:

1. Pass a comprehensive exam on physical fitness.

2. Demonstrate muscular strength and cardiorespiratory endurance during a physical assessment test.

HLS 101 Introduction to Homeland Security & Terrorism

The course will cover the role of the Department of Homeland Security (DHS), review the National Strategies for Homeland Security. Also, defined, reviewed, and discussed are terrorism, international terrorism, and the threats related with weapons of mass destruction. The course will review emergency preparedness and response to effectively attempt to mitigate the threats associated with an attack on the homeland.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Define the purpose of the Department of Homeland Security.
- 2. Define various types of terrorism and discuss threats presented by weapons of mass destruction.
- 3. Identify emergency response procedures associated with homeland attack threats.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on homeland security and terrorism.

HLS 102 National Security Law

The legal framework for the use of force abroad; incorporated international law as national security law; intelligence collection and covert operations; citizen access to national security information; government controls on national security information.

This course is available in the Homeland Security emphasis.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Explain the use of force in situations discussed in class.
- 2. Identify methods of intelligence collection and laws of enforcement nationally and abroad.
- 3. Explain government controls and citizen access to national security information.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on homeland security and terrorism.

HLS 201 Homeland Security Intelligence

This course examines the still-developing field of homeland security intelligence and examines what it is, what roles are played by homeland security, national and state/local intelligence, and the types of analytic skills that homeland security analysis requires.

This course is available in the Homeland Security emphasis.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Identify the role of Homeland Security Intelligence.
- 2. Describe the types of analysis performed by Homeland Security Intelligence.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on Homeland Security Intelligence.

HLS 202 Confronting Terrorism & Intelligence Management

This course of study will focus on obtaining, managing, and analyzing intelligence information. Topics include intelligence collection and analysis methods; team management preparation and planning; covert and clandestine operations; vetting assets and informants; threat assessment analysis; surveillance and counter surveillance; and counterintelligence.

This course is available in the Homeland Security emphasis.

- 1. Define intelligence information and methods to obtain, manage and analyze it.
- 2. Identify management of team preparation and operation planning.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on confronting terrorism & intelligence management.

HLS 300 Religious Extremism and Terrorism

This course examines the complex history and contemporary relations between religion, violence, extremism, and terrorism. This course includes the religious context and theories for the religious extremism and the understanding of the extremist groups and individuals from these religious groups and their motivated acts of violence against religion.

This course is available in the Homeland Security and/or the Corporate Security and Public Safety emphasis.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Differentiate between various religious extremist groups and their motivation for violence.
- 2. Describe the progression of religious extremism and terrorism and the role this plays in modern society.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on religious extremism and terrorism.

CPS 300 Private Sector Securities

In this course students will examine the interrelationships of the criminal justice system to the business corporate security. It also provides an overview into Homeland Security and the physical aspects of the private security field.

This course is available in the Homeland Security and/or the Corporate Security and Public Safety emphasis.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Describe the correlation between criminal justice and business corporate security.
- 2. Identify the physical aspects of the private security field.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on private securities.

CO 101 Introduction to Corrections

This course will examine an overview of the history of corrections in America with a review of the correctional process including: probation, restorative justice, the death penalty, and imprisonment. The organization, management and operation of correctional facilities, inmate life and environment will be examined, including the legal foundation of prisoners' rights.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Define the purpose of corrections in the United States.
- 2. Describe the corrections process, to include: probation, restorative justice, the death penalty, and imprisonment.
- 3. Identify the management and operation of correctional facilities and the inmate environment.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on corrections fundamentals.

CO 102 Juvenile Justice Delinquency

This course provides an overview of the juvenile justice system in the United States. It focuses on the design and application of the juvenile justice system. Upon completion of the course, students will have

a full understanding of the interrelationships among philosophy, notions of causation, and procedural requirements provided to youthful offenders and abused children. Students will also be able to discuss and identify diversion and prevention programs, the effects of incarceration, and possible alternatives to incarceration. Last, the future of juvenile courts and the juvenile justice system will be addressed. *This course is available in the Corrections emphasis.*

Course Objectives:

- 1. Explain the design and application of juvenile justice system in the United States.
- 2. Understand interrelationships among philosophy, notions of causation, and procedural requirements provided to youthful offenders and abused children.
- 3. Identify prevention programs and alternatives to juvenile incarceration.
- 4. Identify the effects of incarceration on juvenile criminals.
- 5. Knowledge of juvenile court systems and their future.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on juvenile justice delinquency.

CO 201 Inmate Supervision

This course examines inmate subcultures and violence in prisons. Analyzes prison environment for correctional officers. Explores life behind bars/offender difficulties in reentering society. *This course is available in the Corrections emphasis.*

Course Objectives:

- 1. Identify causes of violence and subcultures that exist in prisons.
- 2. Describe difficulties offenders will face exiting the prison system.
- 3. Identify risk, hazards and work environment for correctional officers.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on inmate supervision.

CO 202 Probation and Parole

This course introduces probation, the most common response to criminal offenders, and parole. As the problem of prison overcrowding continues, probation and parole will expand, and so will the controversy surrounding their use. Students gain an understanding not only of probation and parole history, administration, policy, and procedures, but also areas of controversy. The course also provides insight into the difficult but interesting work performed by probation and parole officers.

This course is available in the Corrections emphasis.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Define probation and parole as they relate to criminal justice.
- 2. Identify the administrative policy and procedures involved with probation and parole.
- 3. Identify controversy in the prison system and the role that probation and parole play.
- 4. Recognize the work performed by probation and parole officers.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on probation and parole.

CO 203 Sex Offenders

This course explores issues related to deviant sexual behavior in contemporary society. Topics include sexual offenders, child molesters, pornography, Megan's Law, sexual assault, incest, prostitution, and sex offender legislation.

This course is available in the Corrections and/or Criminal Investigations emphasis.

- 1. Define deviant sexual behavior as it relates to contemporary society.
- 2. Identify and define laws/crimes associated with sex offenders.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on sex offenders.

CI 203 Domestic Violence

This course presents the patterns and characteristics of victims in the criminal justice system. Topics include the cause, consequences, and prevalence of domestic violence, and the different approaches law enforcement has taken to respond to victims' issues.

This course is available in the Corrections and/or Criminal Investigations emphasis.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Define domestic violence and the classification of these crimes.
- 2. Identify and define the cause, consequences, and prevalence of domestic violence.
- 3. Recognize various approaches to domestic violence responses.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on domestic violence.

CI 101 Principles of Investigation

This course addresses the techniques, procedures, and ethical issues in the investigation of crime, including organization of the investigative process, crime scene searches, interviewing and interrogating, surveillance, source of information, utility of evidence, scientific analysis of evidence and the role of the investigator in the trial process.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Define the purpose of criminal investigations.
- 2. Define the process and organization of criminal investigations.
- 3. Determine methods of interrogation, surveillance and information gathering.
- 4. Identify the role of the investigator in the trial process.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on principles of investigation.

CI 102 Search and Seizure

This course is designed to teach new Federal and State Search and Seizure changes and recent requirements which affect current law enforcement procedures. *This course is available in the Criminal Investigations emphasis.*

Course Objectives:

1. Explain the powers and restrictions of search as it relates to federal and state requirements.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on search and seizure.

CI 201 Crime Scene Documentation

This course will provide the students with an understanding of the procedures of crime scene observation, note taking, photography and report writing.

This course is available in the Criminal Investigations emphasis.

- 1. Identify the procedures involved in crime scene observation and report writing.
- 2. Recognize proper techniques for crime scene photography.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on crime scene documentation.

CI 202 Crime Scene Processing

This course is designed to introduce the investigative concepts involved in the "Crime Scene Dynamics" of processing the aftermath of a criminal incident. The students will be exposed to how to respond to crime scenes, and examine the multitude of responsibilities involved, such as: the evidence must be identified, photographed, and preserved, witnesses must be isolated and interviewed, the scene must be isolated and protected, fingerprints must be developed, and suspects must be identified and located. *This course is available in the Criminal Investigations emphasis.*

Course Objectives:

- 1. Identify various types of crime scene evidence and proper chain of custody procedures involved in evidence collection.
- 2. Define responsivities in isolating and protecting the crime scene, evidence, and witnesses.
- 3. Determine methods to identify and locate suspects from the crime scene.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on crime scene processing.

CPS 101 Introduction to Corporate Security

This course will cover the history of the private security industry including the development, role, responsibility, limitations, and liabilities within corporate America.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Describe the history and development of private security.
- 2. Explain the purpose and limitations of private security in the corporate environment.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on corporate security fundamentals.

CPS 102 Criminal Investigations & Loss Prevention

This course will examine basic investigative techniques, taking witness statements, interviews, and reports. An overview of police procedures is also included. Students will learn the basic principles and methodologies involved with the prevention of shrinkage or loss. Students will be introduced to basic theories and concepts, key terms and definitions and current critical issues.

This course is available in the Corporate Security and Public Safety emphasis.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Describe techniques for investigations, witness statements, interviews, and reports.
- 2. Identify standard police procedures
- 3. Identify methods and principles to prevent loss.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on criminal investigations and loss prevention.

CPS 201 Resolving Conflict

This course identifies issues and conflicts associated with the private security industry by examining security management, recruitment, selection, training, investigation of crimes, terrorism, and natural disasters.

This course is available in the Corporate Security and Public Safety emphasis.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Identify current issues that relate to private security in topics discussed in class.
- 2. Describe methods of training and management to mitigate private security issues.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on resolving conflict.

CPS 202 Risk & Threat Management

This course provides the student with an understanding of assessing potential risks which may originate from members or employees within an organization by identifying specific risk indicators. An emphasis is given to the process of risk analysis along with the ability to design, manage, and implement a response to potential threats.

This course is available in the Corporate Security and Public Safety emphasis.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Describe methods to assess potential risks and identify risk indicators within an organization.
- 2. Identify strategies and recommendations to moderate risk analysis and potential threats.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on risk and threat management.

STP 200 Strategic Operations (STOPS) Capstone

Strategic Operations (STOPS) provides training services and products for military, law enforcement, and other organizations. Students will participate in a STOPS scenario.

Course Objectives:

Mitigate real world scenarios using knowledge gained throughout the program.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Completion of a STOPS scenario with correct observance of policies and procedures.
- 2. Completion of the Private Security Academy Certificate.

Allied Health Course Descriptions

AP 114 Anatomy and Physiology I

This course provides an overview of the human body. It introduces students to the structure, function, and diseases of the human body. It also introduces students to related terminology used in the clinical settings to describe body positions and parts. Students will be introduced to human cellular development and the impact of disease processes of each specific body system.

- 1. Describe structural organization of the human body.
- 2. Describe the layers of skin and the characteristics of each layer.
- 3. Describe the skeletal structures and one location of each structure.
- 4. Identify the major skeletal muscles of the body, giving the action of each and the structure of each.

- 5. Describe the structures of the heart and the function of each and explain the cardiac cycle, including the cardiac conduction system.
- 6. Describe the components of blood, giving the function of each component listed. How to stop bleeding. Describe the causes, signs and symptoms, and treatments of various diseases and disorders of the blood.
- 7. Describe the pathways and organs of the lymphatic system. Explain how antibodies fight infection. Describe the causes, signs and symptoms, and treatments of major immune disorders.

Pass a comprehensive exam on Anatomy and Physiology.

AP 115 Anatomy and Physiology II

This course provides an overview of the human body. It introduces students to the structure, function, and diseases of the human body. It also introduces students to related terminology used in the clinical settings to describe body positions and parts. Students will be introduced to human cellular development and the impact of disease processes of each specific body system.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Describe the structure and function of each organ in the respiratory system. Explain how oxygen and carbon dioxide are transported in the blood.
- 2. Describe the general functions of the nervous system. Describe the structures and functions of the central nervous system.
- 3. Describe the structure, location, and functions of the kidney. Describe the causes, signs and symptoms, and treatments of various diseases and disorders of the urinary system.
- 4. Summarize the organs of the male reproductive system including the locations, structures, and functions of each. Summarize the organs of the female reproductive system including the locations, structures, and functions of each. Describe the causes, signs and symptoms, and treatments of the most common sexually transmitted infections.
- 5. Describe the organs of the alimentary canal and their functions. Explain the functions of the digestive system's accessory organs.
- 6. Identify the hormones released by the pituitary gland, thyroid gland, parathyroid glands, adrenal glands, pancreas, and other hormone-producing organs, and give the functions of each.
- 7. Describe the anatomy of the nose, ear, eyes, tongue, and the function of each part.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on Anatomy and Physiology.

MT 110 Medical Terminology

This course introduces the student to medical terminology as it relates to the anatomical structure of the human body. Emphasis is on body system root words, prefixes, suffixes, and introductory terminology. Medical language and accepted medical abbreviations are discussed in detail.

- 1. Explain how medical terms are formed.
- 2. Describe the proper procedure for pluralizing.
- 3. Describe the four word parts used to build medical terms.
- 4. Define common medical combining forms.
- 5. Define commonly accepted medical term abbreviations.
- 6. Define commonly accepted medical term symbols.
- 7. Describe the use of medical abbreviations as it relates to medico-legal procedures.

Pass a comprehensive exam on medical terminology.

PH 101 Introduction to Pharmacology

This course introduces students to pharmacology as it relates to a medical office setting. Students gain knowledge of Federal and State drug laws, general drug classifications, drug indications and contraindications, and inventory requirements. Nutrition and its effect on a patient's health will also be emphasized.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Identify the different classifications of medications.
- 2. Describe the chemical, generic, and trade names of medications
- 3. Identify the main manufacturing sources of drugs
- 4. Identify the main sources of drug information.
- 5. Discuss the different schedules of controlled substances
- 6. Discuss desired effects, side effects, and adverse reactions
- 7. Discuss governmental legislation and oversight of medication administration.
- 8. Identify the role of nutrients in the health of the body
- 9. Discuss how the body uses food.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on pharmacology.

MO 110 Medical Office Administration

This course revolves around various medical office management systems and provides students with knowledge in the proper procedures for recording and maintaining patient charts; proper charting techniques; filing and management systems. Mail management stresses both manual and electronic mail communications. Delivering services and specific handling of billing materials will be emphasized. Students will be introduced to dictation and transcription service, proper techniques for handling general office correspondence, letter writing, and composing routine correspondence.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Identify the types of correspondence used in a medical environment.
- 2. Describe the parts of a business letter.
- 3. Explain the process for handling mail.
- 4. Explain how to create a new medical chart.
- 5. Describe the various types of medical chart filing.
- 6. Describe the procedures for properly transcribing a chart.
- 7. Describe the purpose of dictation.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on medical office systems.

COD 101 Introduction to Medical Insurance & Coding

This course provides instruction on how to correctly code diagnostic and professional services rendered by the physician, necessary in billing for reimbursement by insurance companies. Emphasis is on the International Classification of Diseases (ICD-10-CM). Current Procedural Terminology (CPT) and the HCPCS for Medicare claims, as well as electronic coding procedures. The course also includes procedures for the hard copy and electronic completing of the Universal HCFA-1500 insurance form for selected private insurance, HMO, PO, and Medicare.

- 1. Describe various types of insurance programs.
- 2. Explain the procedures and processes involved in submitting health insurance claims.
- 3. Execute the basic steps of the HCFA-1500
- 4. Explain the rules relating to coordination of benefits
- 5. Describe the purpose and use of the ICD-10 manual.
- 6. Describe the purpose and use of the CPT manual.
- 7. Describe the purpose and use of the HCPSC manual.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on medical insurance and coding.

MO 120 Medical Principles & Foundations

This course provides instruction on the principles and foundations of the medical profession. Instruction includes history of the medical profession, types of medical practices, ethical and medico-legal issues, HIPAA regulations. This course also emphasizes the importance of therapeutic communications that exists between the medical professional and the patient.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Explain the responsibilities of the medical assistant
- 2. Explain the personal characteristics of a successful medical professional.
- 3. Describe the multiple disciplines associated with the medical profession
- 4. Explain the different ethical and legal responsibilities of the medical professional.
- 5. Explain the role of HIPAA as it applies to the medical office environment.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on medical principles and foundations.

PC 101 Patient Communication

This course provides students with an understanding of the proper procedures related to front office responsibilities. Emphasis is on responsibilities related to scheduling appointments and receptionist duties. Students will be instructed in the use of newest medical office communication systems and proper telephone etiquette. Other communication topics will include medical assistant's responsibilities relating to the proper education and preventive techniques of patients.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Demonstrate proper telephone etiquette
- 2. Describe proper procedures for taking telephone messages
- 3. Describe proper procedures for routing telephone calls
- 4. Explain the purpose of proper telephone triage
- 5. Describe the importance of proper appointment scheduling
- 6. Identify the elements important in a patient reception room
- 7. Identify the benefits of patient education
- 8. Describe techniques for educating patients with special needs.
- 9. Describe information that should be included in educational information packets.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on patient communications.

KB 101 Keyboarding

This course is designed to provide the student with basic computer keyboarding techniques. Emphasis is on the mastery of the keyboard, which increases speed and maintains accuracy.

Familiarization with the computer keyboard.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Maintain a 30 word per minute speed, OR
- 2. If proficiency demonstrated, increase speed by 10%

MO 140 Introduction to Medical Bookkeeping & HIT

This course explains the improvements to health care that are based on health information technology (HIT). Covers key government initiatives, defines the clinical encounter and the billing cycle, and discusses the benefits of integrated practice management and electronic health record programs. Additionally, this course explains the roles of professional health care and administrative staff in implementing HIT in physician practices. Describes how to interpret a remittance advice (RA) from a health plan and to enter and apply insurance payments in a PM/EHR. The process of appealing claims and post payment audits are discussed. Students also learn how to create patient statements and process a check returned for nonsufficient funds.

Course Objectives:

- 1. List the six steps for checking a remittance advice.
- 2. Describe the procedures for entering insurance payments.
- 3. Explain how to apply insurance payments to charges.
- 4. Explain how to enter capitation payments.
- 5. Discuss the purpose of appeals and post payment audits.
- 6. Compare standard patient statements and remainder patient statements.
- 7. Explain the difference between once-a-month and cycle billing.
- 8. Explain the procedure for processing a nonsufficient funds payment
- 9. Compare practice management (PM) programs and electronic health records (EHRs).
- 10. Discuss the government health information technology (HIT) initiatives that have led to integrated PM/EHR programs.
- 11. List the eight facts that are documented in the medical record for an ambulatory patient encounter.
- 12. Identify the additional uses of clinical information gathered in patient encounters.
- 13. Compare electronic medical records, electronic health records, and personal health records.
- 14. Describe the four functions of a practice management program that relate to managing claims.
- 15. List the steps in the medical documentation and billing cycle.
- 16. Compare the roles and responsibilities of clinical and administrative personnel on the physician practice health care team.
- 17. Explain how professional certification and lifelong learning contribute to career advancement in medical administration.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on bookkeeping and HIT.

MO 130 Collections & Reimbursement Procedures

This course provides an overview of the accounts receivable follow-up process, including the use of aging reports. The correct procedures for collections, including payment plans and the write-offs of uncollectible balances, are described. Explains the content of shared reports and how they are used to help generate and monitor practice revenue as well as to improve the delivery of health care, including the use of reports in PM/EHR to demonstrate meaningful use. Provides an overview of the content and format of electronic and paper claims, and then illustrates the flow of claims from the PM/EHR to a clearinghouse and on to the payer. Students gain the skills required to create, submit, and monitor

insurance claims through the claim adjudication process. Students also learn how to create patient statements and process a check returned for nonsufficient funds.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Explain why it is important to collect overdue balances from patients.
- 2. Describe the way in which financial policies help establish payment expectations.
- 3. Describe the procedures followed to identify overdue accounts.
- 4. Identify the major federal laws that govern the collection process.
- 5. Explain how letters are used in collecting overdue payments.
- 6. Explain payment plans.
- 7. Discuss the use of collection agencies to pursue patients who have not paid overdue bills.
- 8. Describe the procedures for clearing uncollectible balances and small balances from patients' accounts receivable.
- 9. Briefly compare the CMS-1500 paper claim and the 837 electronic claims.
- 10. Discuss the information contained in the Claim Management dialog box.
- 11. Explain the process of creating claims.
- 12. Describe how to locate a specific claim.
- 13. Discuss the purpose of reviewing and editing claims.
- 14. Analyze the methods used to submit electronic claims.
- 15. List the steps required to submit electronic claims.
- 16. Describe how to add attachments to electronic claims.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on Collection and Reimbursement Procedures.

EHR 110 Electronic Health Records I

Students will gain the knowledge and skills needed to use a PM/EHR to create appointments, as well as to add provider breaks, create recall lists, and print providers' schedules. This course covers the skills needed to use a PM/EHR to check patient balances and create chart numbers and cases. Describes methods used to enter documentation in an EHR, including the use of dictation and transcription, voice recognition software, and templates. Students practice entering progress notes with and without the use of a template. The e-prescribing and electronic order entry features of an EHR are also presented. Introduction to the basics of coding, including ICD-9-CM and ICD-10-CM, CPT, and E/M, and explains both paper and electronic encounter forms. The student learns how to use an EHR to record a patient's history, allergies, medications, vital signs, and chief complaint. Students also practice sending and receiving intra-office messages and creating patient reminder letters.

- 1. Identify the four stages of patient flow.
- 2. Discuss the main sections of the patient chart.
- 3. Describe the procedures for recording a patient's past medical, family, and social history.
- 4. Explain how allergies and intolerances are entered in the patient chart.
- 5. Describe the procedure used to enter patient medications.
- 6. Explain how the chief complaint is recorded in a progress note.
- 7. Explain how a patient's vital signs are recorded in the patient chart.
- 8. Explain the uses of an intra-office messaging system in an EHR.
- 9. Describe how letters are created in an EHR.
- 10. Discuss the methods of entering documentation in an EHR.
- 11. Compare the process of entering a progress note with and without using a template.
- 12. Explain why ordering and receiving test results electronically is more efficient than paper methods.
- 13. List the steps required to enter an electronic order.

- 14. Explain how orders are processed in an EHR.
- 15. Define medical coding.

Pass a comprehensive exam on electronic health records.

COD 110 ICD-10-CM Coding

Introduction to the basics of coding, including ICD-10-CM and ICD-10-CM, CPT, and E/M, and explains both paper and electronic encounter forms. Discussion of coding and billing compliance, with a focus on strategies to avoid common coding and billing problems. Students then review and post charges that have been electronically transmitted and record time-of-service payments. Students practice entering progress notes with and without the use of a template. The e-prescribing and electronic order entry features of an EHR are also presented.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Define medical coding.
- 2. List the six steps in the charge capture process.
- 3. Explain the purpose of auditing diagnosis and procedure code assignment.
- 4. Discuss the effect of health plans' rules on billing.
- 5. Describe the use of CPT/HCPCS modifiers to communicate billing information to health plans.
- 6. Discuss strategies to avoid common coding/billing errors.
- 7. Explain the difference between posting charges from a paper encounter form and posting charges from an electronic encounter form.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on basic coding.

EHR 120 Electronic Health Records II

This course introduces principles of quality assessment and improvement, and utilization, risk, and case management, in healthcare. Topics include Continuous Quality Improvement, and case management processes, data analysis/reporting techniques, credentialing, regulatory quality monitoring requirements, and outcome measures and monitoring. Upon completion, students should be able to abstract, analyze, and report clinical data for facility-wide quality management/performance improvement programs and monitor compliance measures. This course provides a comprehensive discussion of topics common to the health information profession. Emphasis is placed on application of professional competencies, job search tools, and preparation for the certification examination. Upon completion, students should be able to demonstrate competence in entry-level domains and subdomains for health information technologies.

- 1. Describe key privacy and security issues related to EHRs.
- 2. Set up new insurance companies and edit existing insurance company information.
- 3. Add patients to the Office Schedule; use the Patient Tracker; create a patient Face Sheet, an Office Visit note and reports, various office visit reports; and conduct a chart evaluation.
- 4. Order and process lab tests, and create a test report.
- 5. Create, edit, and document procedures and diagnoses.
- 6. Perform a search of the medical database.
- 7. Describe the elements of a data security program.
- 8. Describe the four primary components of the security provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act.
- 9. Discuss the roles and responsibilities of health information technicians regarding data security.

Pass a comprehensive exam on advanced EHR concepts.

COD 120Medical Coding II40 HoursLecture 10 Lab 30

In-depth coverage of ICD-10 coding rubrics, conventions, principles, and updates as they apply to accurate coding of complex cases. Principles of inpatient and outpatient coding are covered in this class. Examine E&M guidelines and HCPCS coding.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Apply ethical principles and methodologies of medical coding.
- 2. Differentiate between the various coding methods applied in healthcare settings such as hospitals, physician's offices, and insurance companies.
- 3. Apply basic to intermediate principles of CPT, E&M guidelines and HCPCS coding.
- 4. Demonstrate an ability to assign ICD-10 codes.
- 5. Analyze patient records and assign codes for advanced procedures.
- 6. Demonstrate proper sequencing of codes per established guidelines and standards.
- 7. Utilize intermediate and advanced coding methods to solve complex case studies.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on advanced coding procedures with ICD-10.

CS 103 Career Development

This course offers an introduction to successful interviewing and resume development techniques. In addition, it provides information on effective networking and seeking out the appropriate job. Instruction is provided on correct workplace habits, professionalism, and maintaining a positive attitude.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Demonstrate effective interviewing techniques.
- 2. Create a professional resume.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Complete a mock interview with a Career Advisor.
- 2. Develop a professional resume with a Career Advisor and submit to three job postings.

EX 111 Externship for HIT

Students will extern 160 hours in a medical setting under the direct supervision of the facility administrator and general supervision of the School's program director. Students will receive hands-on application of their recently acquired medical skills and will develop the confidence to secure a career position.

Course Objectives:

Satisfactorily complete externship.

Course Competencies:

Demonstrate introductory proficiency in the medical assisting profession.

NPC 115 NCCT Preparation Course (NCMOA)

This course is designed for graduates of the Healthcare Information Technician diploma program and the healthcare information technicians whom are taking the Associate in Applied Science degree program. The test preparation course is aligned to the NCCT exam requirements and reviews all core healthcare information technician responsibilities which include medical administrative and front office tasks. The course will consist of medical terminology, medical front office skills, EHR/EMR for the medical office.

Upon completion of the course, students will be prepared for the NCMOA exam (National Certified Medical Office Assistant) certification test through the NCCT (National Center for Competency Testing).

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive certification exam for national certification as a Medical Office Assistant through NCCT (National Center for Competency Testing).

NPC 116 NCCT Preparation Course (NCICS)

This course is designed to provide health information technicians with advanced knowledge in insurance and medical billing/coding services in physician's offices and medical specialty practices for health care providers to be paid for services rendered. Healthcare information technicians prepare and submit claims to insurance companies, prepare and send statements to patients. Healthcare information technologist must be knowledgeable and possess skills in the areas of medical terminology, anatomy & physiology, advanced diagnostic and procedural coding, insurance claims processing, and medical billing procedures.

Course Objectives:

Upon completion of the course, students will be prepared for the NCICS exam (National Certified Insurance and Coding Specialist) certification test through the NCCT (National Center for Competency Testing).

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive certification exam for national certification as an Insurance Coding Specialist through NCCT (National Center for Competency Testing).

EX 114 Externship for Coding

Students will work 40 hours in medical clinic under the direct supervision of a physician or a medical billing and coding specialist.

Course Objectives:

Satisfactorily complete a coding externship.

Course Competencies:

Demonstrate proficiency in medical billing and coding.

LP 110 Laboratory Procedures I

This course provides students with an introduction to the fundamentals of microbiology and use of the microscope. Laboratory procedures including urinalysis and other specimen collection techniques will be emphasized. Point of Care Test (POCT) for glucose and hematocrit analysis, as well as home pregnancy testing, will be covered. Emphasis will be placed on infection control protocols and quality assurance standards.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Describe how microorganisms cause disease.
- 2. Demonstrate procedures for collecting and handling various specimens.
- 3. Discuss the regulatory requirements of CLIA.
- 4. Describe the purpose of the medical office laboratory.
- 5. Describe the goal of quality assurance.
- 6. Demonstrate the proper procedure for performing a urinalysis.
- 7. Demonstrate the proper procedure for performing a glucose test.

- 1. Pass a comprehensive exam on laboratory procedures.
- 2. Pass a laboratory proficiency procedure relating to urinalysis testing.
- 3. Pass a laboratory proficiency procedure relating to glucose testing.

LP 120 Laboratory Procedures II

This course provides an introduction to the proper technique and procedures for performing phlebotomy. It includes needle technique, creating patient rapport, medical safety, and processes of keeping records. Instruction includes introduction to needle sizes, vacuum tubes, wing-infused phlebotomy. Emphasis is placed on safety and proper handling and disposing of bio-hazardous wastes and sharps.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Describe the composition and function of blood.
- 2. Identify the equipment and supplies necessary for drawing blood.
- 3. Describe common fears and concerns of patients.
- 4. Identify common blood tests and their purposes.
- 5. Demonstrate proper procedure for collecting a blood specimen
- 6. Demonstrate proper procedure for handling and disposing of containment equipment.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Pass a comprehensive exam on phlebotomy procedures.
- 2. Demonstrate basic laboratory procedure on venipuncture and proper us of centrifuge.

CP 110 Clinical Procedures I

This course provides instruction on medication administration, drug measurement and review of various routes for administration of medications. Students gain comprehensive hands-on experience performing the following forms of injections; intramuscular, subcutaneous, and intradermal.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Identify MA's responsibilities for drug administration
- 2. Demonstrate dosage calculations
- 3. Identify the Right of Administration
- 4. Differentiate different types of needles and syringes
- 5. Describe various techniques for administering drugs
- 6. Demonstrate parenteral drug administration
- 7. Demonstrate proper charting procedures of drug administration

Course Competencies:

- 1. Pass a comprehensive exam on clinical I procedures.
- 2. Pass a laboratory proficiency procedure relating to drug administration.

CP 120 Clinical Procedures II

This course provides instruction in patient preparation, charting of treatments, measurements of height and weight, and patient examination – vital sign recording will be emphasized. Students receive an orientation to patient services, which is requisite knowledge for not only the clinical health care provider, but for the administrative aspect of the health care profession. Instruction will encompass patient data collection, medical health history, and physical examinations. Students will learn to monitor vital signs for potential medical emergencies. This course also provides an introduction to electrocardiographs (ECG), characteristics of normal electrocardiogram rhythms and ECG procedures.

- 1. Identify the skills necessary to conduct a patient interview.
- 2. Identify the six "C's" of writing a patient history

- 3. Describe the procedure for conducting a patient interview
- 4. Describe vital signs and common body measurements
- 5. Demonstrate the taking of vital signs
- 6. Identify the instruments necessary to perform vital sign measuring
- 7. Define the purpose of a general physical examination
- 8. Explain conduction system of the heart.
- 9. Describe normal sinus rhythms of the heart and artifacts that cause error.

- 1. Pass a comprehensive exam on clinical II procedures.
- 2. Pass a laboratory proficiency procedure on taking vital signs.
- 3. Pass a comprehensive exam on electrocardiograms.
- 4. Demonstrate the proper procedure for conducting an ECG.

CP 130 Clinical Procedures III

This course provides instruction in the procedures and protocol for the following specialty medical examinations; obstetrics, gynecology, male reproductive, pediatrics, urology, allergology, dermatology, endocrinology, ophthalmology, orthopedics, otorhinolaryngology, proctology. In addition, medical emergency procedures and in-office patient care for burns, strains, sprains, bruise, etc. will be included. Emphasis will be placed on the use of ambulation devices.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Describe the MA responsibility during different specialty examinations
- 2. Identify the types of diagnostic tests performed during specialty examinations
- 3. Identify common signs of domestic violence, elder and child abuse.
- 4. Discuss protocol associated with assisting during gynecological examination.
- 5. Describe the treatment for assisting with strains, sprains and other tissue injuries
- 6. Discuss the procedures associated with RICE
- 7. Describe the proper procedure for educating a patient on the use crutches.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Pass a comprehensive exam on clinical III procedures.
- 2. Pass a laboratory proficiency procedure on assisting with ambulation devices.

CP 140 Clinical Procedures IV

This course provides instruction in the principles of medical asepsis and proper procedures for managing infectious control. Instruction includes concepts of universal precautions, HIV, hepatitis, and other bloodborne pathogen protection. Proper asepsis and cleaning of patient exam and treatment areas will also be discussed. Emphasis will be placed on the use and care of personal protective equipment.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Explain the disease process.
- 2. Define infectious disease prevention.
- 3. Explain the body's defense mechanisms that provide protection against infection.
- 4. Describe the MA's role in infectious control.
- 5. Demonstrate the proper procedure in preparing instruments for sterilization.
- 6. Demonstrate the use of the autoclave sterilizer.
- 7. Describe universal precautions
- 8. Define blood borne pathogens, including HIV and hepatitis

Course Competencies:

1. Pass a comprehensive exam on clinical IV procedures.

2. Pass a laboratory proficiency procedure on the proper use of the autoclave.

CP 140 Clinical Procedures V

This course provides an overview of the medical assistant's responsibility regarding minor, in-office surgical procedures to include asepsis, gloving procedures, armamentarium, basic procedures, and medications. Overview of general instrument classification associated with a general medicine practice.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Explain the medical assistant's role in minor surgical procedures.
- 2. Describe wounds and the healing process
- 3. Define surgical asepsis.
- 4. Identify instruments used in minor surgical procedures.
- 5. Describe the protocol for maintaining a sterile field.
- 6. Demonstrate donning/doffing surgical gloves.
- 7. Demonstrate maintaining a sterile field

Course Competencies:

- 1. Pass a comprehensive exam on clinical V procedures.
- 2. Pass a laboratory proficiency exam on proper asepsis technique while donning/doffing surgical gloves.
- 3. Pass a laboratory proficiency exam regarding the setting up of a sterile field.

EKG 201 Electrocardiography

This course provides comprehensive instruction on electrocardiographs, including an overview of cardiovascular system, characteristics of normal electrocardiogram rhythms, procedures and quality assurance protocol. Upon completion of this course, students will be eligible to take the national certification exam.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Describe the anatomy and physiology of the heart.
- 2. Explain the conduction system of the heart.
- 3. Describe the basic patterns of an ECG.
- 4. Identify artifacts and potential equipment problems.
- 5. Identify the components of an ECG machine.
- 6. Describe how an ECG is interpreted.
- 7. Demonstrate the proper procedure for conducting an ECG.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Pass a comprehensive exam on electrocardiograph procedures.
- 2. Pass a laboratory proficiency procedure while performing an ECG.

PHB 201 Phlebotomy

This course provides comprehensive instruction on the proper technique and procedures for performing phlebotomy. It includes needle technique, creating patient rapport, medical safety, and processes of keeping record. Instruction includes introduction to needle sizes, vacuum tubes, wing-infused phlebotomy. Emphasis is placed on safety, proper handling and disposing of bio-hazardous wastes and sharps. Students will perform 40 hours of externship in a medical environment under the direct supervision of a physician or authorized laboratory professional.

- 1. Describe the composition and function of blood.
- 2. Identify the equipment and supplies necessary for drawing blood.

- 3. Describe common fears and concerns of patients.
- 4. Identify common blood tests and their purposes.
- 5. Demonstrate proper procedures for collecting a blood specimen
- 6. Demonstrate proper procedures for handling and disposing of containment equipment.

- 1. Pass a comprehensive exam on phlebotomy procedures.
- 2. Pass a laboratory proficiency procedure on venipuncture and proper us of centrifuge.

CS 103 Career Development

This course offers an introduction to successful interviewing and resume development techniques. In addition, it provides information on effective networking and seeking out the appropriate job. Instruction is provided on correct workplace habits, professionalism, and maintaining a positive attitude.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Demonstrate effective interviewing techniques.
- 2. Create a professional resume.

Course Competencies:

- 1. Complete a mock interview with a Career Advisor.
- 2. Develop a professional resume with a Career Advisor and submit to three job postings.

NPC 114 NCCT Preparation Course 60 Hours Lecture 60 Lab 0

This course provides comprehensive instruction in the core competencies associated with being a nationally recognized medical assistant through the National Center for Competency Testing (NCCT). The course includes medical topics including anatomy and physiology, medical terminology, medical office operations, patient exam, and medical procedure techniques.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Identify the anatomical parts of the human and their physiology interaction.
- 2. Describe medical terms and abbreviations associated with the medical profession.
- 3. Describe the procedures and responsibilities associated with the medical office practice.
- 4. Explain the procedural steps in performing patient examinations and medical procedures to include specimen collection, quality assurance testing, patient positioning, and ambulation assistance.
- 5. Describe Universal Precaution and other safety precautions associated with the medical practice and patient care.

Course Competencies:

1. Pass a comprehensive exam on national core competency testing for medical assistants.

EX 110 Externship for MA

Students will extern 160 hours in a medical setting under the direct supervision of the facility administrator and general supervision of the School's program director. Students will receive hands-on application of their recently acquired medical skills and will develop the confidence to secure a career position.

Course Objectives:

Satisfactorily complete externship.

Course Competencies:

Demonstrate introductory proficiency in the medical assisting profession.

CP 118 Anatomy & Physiology for ECG

This course provides an overview of the human body. It introduces students to the structure, function, and diseases of the human body. It also introduces students to related terminology used in the clinical settings to describe body positions and parts. Emphasis will be on cardiovascular system.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Describe structural organization of the human body.
- 2. Identify body systems.
- 3. Describe terms associated with body planes, directional terms, quadrants, and cavities.
- 4. Describe cardiovascular system.
- 5. Define Homeostasis
- 6. Describe the effects of treatment and medication administration to various body systems.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on Anatomy and Physiology related to EKG/ECG.

CP 118 Medical Terminology for ECG

This course introduces the student to medical terminology as they relate to the anatomical structure of the human body. Introduction to body system root words, prefixes, suffixes, and introductory terminology. Emphasis is on cardiovascular system terminology. Medical language and accepted medical abbreviations related to electrocardiograms.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Explain how medical terms are formed.
- 2. Describe the proper procedure for pluralizing.
- 3. Describe the four-word parts used to build medical terms.
- 4. Define common medical combining forms.
- 5. Identify terminology related to the cardiovascular system.
- 6. Define commonly accepted medical term abbreviations related to ECGs.
- 7. Define commonly accepted medical term symbols related to ECGs.

Course Competencies:

Pass a comprehensive exam on medical terminology related to ECGs.

EKG 190 Electrocardiography Procedures

This course provides comprehensive instruction on electrocardiographs, characteristics of normal electrocardiogram rhythms, procedures, and quality assurance protocol. Upon completion of this course, students will be eligible to take the national certification exam.

Course Objectives:

- 1. Explain the conduction system of the heart.
- 2. Describe the basic patterns of an ECG.
- 3. Identify cardiovascular medications and effects.
- 4. Identify artifacts and potential equipment problems.
- 5. Identify the components of an ECG machine.
- 6. Describe how an ECG is interpreted.
- 7. Demonstrate the proper procedure for conducting an ECG.

- 1. Pass a comprehensive exam on electrocardiograph procedures.
- 2. Pass a laboratory proficiency procedure while performing an ECG.